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The Board of Directors
UCPE Leasing and Finance Corporation
{A Whoily Owned Subsidiary of United Coconut Planters Bank) I

E" Floor, UCPB Corporate Offices
7907 Makati Avenue, Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UCPB Leasing and Finance Corporation

(the Company), which comprise the statements of financial positicn as at December 31, 2018
and 2017, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in eguity and
statements of cash flows for the yvears then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (FSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibiilies for
ihe Audit of the Financial Staterments section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines
{Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements in the Philippines that are relevant o
cur audits of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respansibilities in
accordancea with these reguirements and the Code of Ethics. We belleve that the audit
evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accerdance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
nacassary to enable the preparation of financial statements that ara free from material
misstatement, whather due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the financlal statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a gaing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
cencem and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reparting process.

Auditors’' Responsibilitias for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor, and to Issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a
material misstatement when it exdsts. Misstatements can arise from fraud of ermor and are
considered material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit proceduras responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian.
The risk cf not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for cne
resulting from ermor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the averride of internal controi.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Campany’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Cenclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concarn basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern,
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemnance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during cur audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Qur audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statemants taken as a whole. The supplamentary information for the year ended December 31,
2018 required by the Bureau of Intemnal Revenue as disclosed in Mote 23 to the financial
statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis and s not a required part of the
basic financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS. Such supplementary
infarmation is the responsibility of management. The supplementary information has been
subjected o the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whaole.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By: afiola

CPA Reg. No. 0090741
TIN 108-228-427
FTR No. 7333698, January 3, 2018, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 0385-AR-4 (until Sept. 16, 2022)
Fiem - No. 0002-FR-5 (until Mar. 28, 2021)
BIR AN 08-002511-18-2018 (until Jan, 25, 2021)
Firm's BOAPRC Cerl. of Reg. MNo. 0002 (until Jul, 24, 2021)

August 22, 2018
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UCPB LEASING AND FINANCE CORPORATION
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Unired Cocomur Planters Bank)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DE'EEH.BEEEI, 2NE AT 2007

{Amounts in Plhilippior Pesos)
Moies 20E 2017
ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1 P 93,663,945 P 20,316,688
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES — Mes ] 3 EELA30, 840 3,149.293,311
INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY - Net 3 5,380,928 5 541,274
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - Net 10 E3,E90, 710 91,370,563
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - Net 1 153,078,515 20,544 092
OTHER ASSETS — Met 1 54,138,932 87,523,343
TOTAL ASSETS P 3,071,803,470 P 3433689 241
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

BILLE PAYARLE 2 P 1,114, 166,667 P 1.316,608, 157
ACCOUNTS PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES 1 325,166,897 281 R10,350
DEPOSIT ON LEASE CONTRACTS 8 263,745,453 253,271,041

Toml Lishdlities 1,703,079,017 1,851 657 548
CAPITAL 5TOCE 5 775,000,000 775,000,000
REVALUATION RESERVES 5 3,000 450,500
REETAINED EARMIMNGSE 5 Sﬂlﬁbﬂ BH-IEID!III'E'H

Total Eguity 1368724453 1,600,991 693
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P 3,071,803,470 P 3,431,689 241

See Noves to Financial Siaterments.




RN R E R EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE'REE'E'E

LUICEB LEASING AND FINAMNCE CORPORATION
A Whally Owmed Subsrdiany: of United Coconot Planters Bank)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 27

{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)
Notes 2016 2017

REVEMUES
Interest incomes B F 166,407 686 P 205,244,955
Leasing income B 75,730,573 72,602,112
Exquity share in net camnings of a subsidiary g 167,204 168,011
242,305,463 278,017,078
INTEREST EXPENSE 12 71,575,811 74,399,501
NET INTEREST AND LEASING INCOME 170,729,652 203,617,577
OTHER INCOME - Net 16 23321601 96,078,674
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 16 193,047,735 186,710,132
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,003 518 110985119
TAX EXPENSE (INCOME) 18 19,334,085 ) 51,319,893
NET PROFIT 20,337,603 59,666,226
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) g 427,500 374,500
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 19,910,103 P 60,040, 724

Lee Notes ro Financral Statements.




Balance at December 31, 2017
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UCPB LEASING AND F1
(A Whally Owned Subsidiary o
STATEMENTS OF C
FOR THE YEARS ENDED T
{Amounts in P
Rev
Notes Capital Stock Ri
Balance at January 1, 2018
As previously reported P TI5000000 P
Effect of adoption of PFRS 9, Fisantial Instrements, net of tax =~ 2, 15 -
Asg restated 775,000,000
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 9 - (
Reversal of appropration 15
Balance at December 31, 2018 P 775,000,000 P .
Balance at January 1, 2017 P 775,000,000 P
Total comprehensive income for the year 9 .
Reversal of appropration
Cash dividends 15 -
Appropoation 15

P 775,000,000 P

See Motes to Fins




NANCE CORPORATION
[nited Coconut Planters Bank)
JANGES IN EQUITY
ECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
ulippine Pesos)
serves Appropriated _Unappropriated Total Total
P 1193 P 1,601,991,693
- i ﬁﬁﬁ ( i g:ﬁ:;;:} ( 5%543 ) ( 253177.343)
490,500 223,187,283 350,136,567 573,323,850 1,348,814,350
427,500 ) - 20,337,603 20,337,603 19,910,103
. { 3,585,850 ) 3,585,850 - :

63,000 P 219601433 P 374060020 P

593,661,453 P 1,368,724,453

116000 P 250,000,000 P T16834967 P

066,834,967 P 1,741,950,967

374,500 ; 50,666,226 59,666,226 60,040,726
; { 150,000,000 ) 150,000,000 - :
: - ( 200,000,000 ) | 200,000,000 ) ( 200,000,000 )
- 100,000,000 { 100,000,000 ) : .

490500 P 200,000,000 P 626501,193 P

826,501,193 P 1,601,991,693

meral Siafemenis,
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UCPE LEASIMNG AND FINANCE CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2048 AN 2017
fAmounts to Fhulippdne Posos)
Moes 2018 017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax P 1,003,518 P 110,986,119
Adjustments for:
Incenest received 173,477,654 207,081,507
Interest income 8 [ 166 407,686 ) | 205,246,855 )
Imnpatrment and credhit losses i TEBE2 04 &3 B850 934
Interest expense 12 TLETE,EN T4 3540 507
Ioresest paid L TLASBATI) 159075230 )
Diepreciation snd amarsraten 1t 15,253,883 30,806 645
Grainy oo gale of secchables 1 { 597333y | 42 BE0.947
Loss on smle of assets soquared - net i 5275 82% 12,044,983
Gasn on forechosuss Lé i 5 LA L | 414253037
Exquaty share in net earnings of & subsidiary 9 { 67,204 168,011 )
Crpemnng profi before workeng capital changes 91,003,392 123,445 263
Dhecresse in lowns snd receivables A& FER RO 95,671,319
Dreesease in investment properties 7, 720,81 TH0LATE
Drecresse (increase] in other asgety 15,495,567 { 15,486,189 )
Increase (decrease) in accounts pavables and othes labiires 43,139, 200 ) 17,636,633 )
Increase (decrease) in depogit on lease conmacts 10474412 i 40,110,263
Cash genersted from operstions po i b AT 153,687 472
Cash paid for Bncodne mac ) iy 3B BT5 670
et Cash Genenated From Operating Actvities 207,011,572 114,811, 693
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES "
Acquisitions of property snd equipment { 1510288 ) 12,584,109 )
Proceeds from dEsposal of propeny and equipment S AH -
Met Cash Used in Investing Activities ( LI4R2E) | 12,514,109 )
CASH FLOWSE FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES =
Bepayments of bl pavable {  LEELT4%4% ) | 2,1B3593,420 )
Proceeds from avadments of bills payabie 1,560, 300,000 1,625 622,515
Met Cash Uked i Financing Activities (0 HZA494% ) | 557970808 Y
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 33472587 { 28567330 )
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 90,316,688 345,990,009
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR F 93,683,945 P 90,314,688
See Motes fo Financdal Staremenis,
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UCPB LEASING AND FINANCE CORPORATION
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of United Coconut Planters Bank)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

fAmounts in Philippines Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
11 General Information

UCPB Leasing and Finance Corporation (the Company) is 2 domestic corporation
incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on January 2, 1989 as a finance company under
Republic Act (R.A.) No. 8556, The Finandng Company At of 1998, (the Financing
Company Act). The Company is presently engaged in providing services such as lease
financing, check discounting and rade receivable financing.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of United Coconut Planters Bank
(UCPB or the Parent Bank), 2 universal bank incorporated and domiciled in the
Philippines organized to provide expanded commercial banking services such as
deposit products, loans and trade finance, domestc and foreign fund tansfers,
treasury, foreign exchange investment banking and trust services.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company holds 100% ownership interest in

United Foreign Exchange Corporation (UFEC), a domestic company primarily
engaged in dealing of foreign currencies and financial instruments,

In September 2010, the Monetary Board of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP)
approved the Company’s application to engage in quasi-banking functions, In
Jamuary 2012, however, the Company decided to cancel its quasi-banking license and
the BSP approved its immediate revocation on Apal 26, 2012,

On August 18, 2017, the SEC approved the change in the registered principal office
of the Company from 14® Floor, UCPB Building, 7907 Makati Avenue, Makat City
to 6* Floor, UCPB Corporate Offices, 7207 Makat Avenue, Makan City. On
August 20, 2018, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) approved such change

in the registered principal office.

12 Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31,
2018 (including the comparative financial statements as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2017) were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
(BOD) on August 22, 2019,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these

financial statements are summarized in the succeeding pages. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the vears nresented. unless ntherwrise srared
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2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
(a) Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

(&)

The financial statements of the II:::mF:.nF have been Fmpa.m& 1 accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and approved by the Philippine
Board of Accountancy.

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases
specified by PFRS for each type of assey, liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully descnbed in the accounting policies that
follow.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are P:I.'ﬂmu'd in gccordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financal Statements. The Company presents all
nems of income, expense and other comprehensive income in a single statement
of comprehensive income.

The Company presents a third statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the preceding period when it applies an accountng policy retrospectively, or
makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has 4 maternal
cffect on the information in the statement of inancial positon at the beginning
of the preceding pedod. The related notes to the third statement of financial
position are not required to be disclosed.

In 2018, the Company adopted PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which was applied
using the transitional relief allowed by the standard. This allowed the Company

not to restate its prior periods’ financial statements. Differences ansing from the
adoption of PFRS 9 in relation to impairment of financial assets are recognized in
the opening batance of Retained Earnings in the current year [see Note 2.2(a)()].

The effects of the adoption of PFRS 9 on the equity accounts presented in the
statement of changes in equity as of January 1, 2018 are as follow:

Effeci on,

Appropristed Llnappropriated Total

Reoined Famings Brisinrd Eamingy R T, —
Balmnee at Decomber 31, 24087
usder PAS 5 N 1 T 1T 1] R LTI Lk E____Le0 951 683
Increaie = alloweance o ppsmens
on loans e secevables . { 2|/ITI Y] | 255,177,840
Appeopeanion of retcred cienmgs
ficer emoes general b b proovseen
pex BEP reouuirermensy (see Moes 217 end 15.5) DOETIY | 2017 2
Toml impact of FFRS ¢ JSIETIRY [ AN} | 255177343 ]
Babasee af Jasuary 1, 2018
wnder PFRS 9 B 2uiae B MOIMET B LMAN4IM
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Functional and Presentation Currency

These fnancial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Company's
functional and presentation currency, and all values represent absolute amounts,
except when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using its
functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

Effective in 2018 that are Relevant to the Company

The Company adopted for the first dme the following new PFRS, amendments,
and annual improvements to PFRS, which are mandatorily effective for annual

penods beginning on or after January 1, 2018

PAS 40 (Amendments) :  lovestment Property — Transfers of
Investment Property

PFRS 9 :  Financial Instraments

PFRS 15 i BRevenue from Contracts with Customers;
Clarificatons to PFRS 15

Annusl Improvements to

PERS (2014-2016 Cycle)
PFRS 1 (Amendments} : First-ime Adopuon of Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards — Deletion of
Short-term Exemptions

Discussed below and in the succeeding pages are the relevant information
about these standards, interpretation and improvements.

(i) PAS 40 (Amendments), Jmestment Property — Tramgfers of Investment Propersy.
The amendments state that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from,
investment property when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in
use. A change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the
definition of investment property. A change in management’s intentions for
the use of a property by itself does not constitute evidence of a change in
use. The amendments provided a non-exhaustive kist of examples
consttutng change in use. The application of thess amendments had no
impact on the Company's financial statements.

{iy PFRS 9 (issued in 2014). This new standard on financial instruments
replaced PAS 39, Finanaia/ Instrements: Recognition and Mearsrement, and PFRS 9
issued in 2000, 2010 and 2013. This standard contains, among others, the
following:

* three principal classificaion categories for financial assets based on the
business model on how an entity is managing its financial instruments,
Le., financial assets at amortized costs, fair value through profit and loss

(FVTPL), and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT);
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Management determuned that except for gains ansing from sale of non-
fnancial assets, certain penaltics and service fees, substandal amount of

Company's revenues are generated from financial instruments, which are
outside the scope of PFRS 15, For those revenues under the scope of
PFRS 15, recognition and measurement did not significanty vary from

PAS 18

The adopron of PFRS 15 has resulted changes in its accounting policies
(see Note 2.11), but no adjustments to the amounts recognized in the
Company's financial statements. The application of this standard had no
significant impact on Company's financia] statements. _-'m:q:mdi.ngly, o
remeasurements not reclassifications were recognized on January 1, 2018,

{iv) Anoual Improvements to PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle. Among the
improvements, PFRS 1 (Amendments), Firg-time Adepsion af Philippine
Financial Reperting Standards — Deletion of Short-term Escempitions, is relevant to
the Company but had no matenal impact on the Companys’s financial
statements as these amendments merely clanfy existing requirements. The

amendments removed short-term ex

tons in PFRS 1 r:m:r-::ing PFRS 7,

Financigl Instruments: Dirclosares, PAS 19, Emplsyer Bemefits, and PFRS 10,
Consolidated Fimanal Statements, because the reporong period to which the

exempuions applied have already transpired.
(8) Effective in 2018 but not Relevant to the Company

The following interpretation, amendments and annual improvements to existing
standards are mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018 but are not relevant to the Company’s financial statements,

PFRS 2 (Amendments)

PFRS 4 {Amendments)
IFRIC 22
Annual Improvements to

PFRS (2014-2016 Cycle)
PAS 28 (Amendments)

Share-based Payment — Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Insurance Contracts — Applying PFRS 9
with PFRS 4, Imowrane Contrasty

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Investment in Associates and Jomt Ventures
~ Measunng an Associate and Joint
Ventures at Fair Value
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(e} Effective Subreguent to 2018 but not Adspted Eary

There are new PFRS, amendments, interpretations and annual improvements to

existing

standards effective for annual periods subsequent to 2018, which are

adopted by the FRSC. Management will adopt the following relevant
pronouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions; and, unless
otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements:

@

(1)

PFRS 9 (Amendments), Fimamaial Instruments — Prepayment Features nith Nepative
Compensation (effective from January 1, 2019). The amendments clasify that
prepayment features with negative compensation attached to financial
instruments may still qualify under the “solely payments of principal and
nterests” (SPPI) test. As such, the financial assets containing prepayment
features with negative compensation may still be classified at amortized cost
or at FVOCL

PFRS 16, Leases (effective from January 1, 2019). The new standard will
eventually replace PAS 17, Laases, and its related interpretation IFRIC 4,
Determining Whether an Arrangement Comtains a Leare. For lessees, it requires to
account for leases “on-balance sheet” by recognizing a “right-of-use™ asset
and a lease liability. The lease liability is initally measured as the present
value of future lease payments. For this purpose, lease payments include
fixed, non-cancellable payments for lease elements, amounts due under
residual value guarantees, certain types of contingent payments and amounts
due during optional pedods to the extent that extension is reasonably
certain. In subsequent periods, the “rght-of-use™ asset is accounted for
similar to a purchased asset subject to depreciation or amortizatgon. The
lease hiability is accounted for similar to a financial linbility which is
amortized using the effective interest method. However, the new standard
provides important reliefs or exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
bow value assets. If these exemptions are used, the accounting is similar to
operating lease accounting under PAS 17 where lease payments are
recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term or another
systematic basis (if more representative of the pattern of the lessee’s benefit).

For lessors, lease accounting is similar to PAS 17's. In particular, the
distinction berween finance and operating leases is retained. The definitions
of each type of lease, and the supporting indicators of a finance lease, are
substantially the same as PAS 17's. The basic accounting mechanics are also
similar, but with some different or more explicit guidance in few areas.
These include vanable payments, sub-leases, lease modifications, the
treatment of initial direct costs and lessor disclosures.

The management plans 1o adopt the modified retrospective application of
PFRS 16 whete the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard will
be recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of Retained Earnings
account at the date of initial application. The Company will elect to apply
the standard to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
PAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application. Management is
currently assessing the financial impact of this new standard on the
Company’s financial statements.
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(i¥)

(¥)

(1)

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty Over Incame Tax Treatments (effective from January 1,
2019). The interpretation provides clarification on the determination of
taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The core principle of
the interpretation requires the Company to consider the probability of the
tax treatment being accepted by the taxation authonty. When it is probable
that the tax treatment will be accepted, the determination of the taxable
profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates shall be
on the basis of the accepted tax treatment. Otherwise, the Company has to
use the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on the
surrounding circumstances, in determining the tax accounts identified
immediately above,

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consabidated Finanagal Statements, and PAS 28
(Amendments), [nvestomenis tn _Assagater and Jaint Venturer = Sol or Contribution
of Assets Between an Imvestor and its Assodiates or Jaint 1enture (effective date
deferred indefinitely). The amendments to PFRS 10 require full recognition
in the investor's financial statements of gains or losses arsing on the sale or
contmbution of assets that constitute a business as defined in PFRS 3,
Businers Comisinations, berween an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the partial recognition of gains or losses (L.e., to the extent of
the unrelated investor's interests in an associate or joint venture) only applies
to those sale of contibution of assets that do not constitute a business.
Corresponding amendments have been made to PAS 28 to reflect these
changes. In addition, PAS 28 has been amended 1o clarify that when
determining whether assets that are sold or contributed constiture a
business, an entity shall consider whether the sale or contobution of those
assets 15 part of multple arrangements that should be accounted foras a
single ransaction.

Annual Improvements to PFRS 2015-2017 Cycle (effective from January 1,
2019). Among the improvements, the following amendments are relevant to
the Company but had no material impact on the Company’s financial
statements as these amendments merely clarify existing requirements:

* PAS 12 (Amendments), Income Taxer — Tax Conseguences of Dividendr. The
amendments clarify that all income tax consequence of dividend
payments should be recognized in profit or loss.

* PAS 23 (Amendments), Borrowsng Costs — Ebpibifity for Capitalization. The
amendments clarify that any specific borrowing which remains
outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended
purpose, such borrowing will then form part of the entity's general
borrowings when calculating the capitalization rate for capitalization
purposes.

Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8,
Aceounting Policies, Changer in Ascounting Estimates and Errors — Definition of
Material (effectve January 1, 2020). The amendments clarify the definition
of ‘materiality’ in PAS 1 and how it should be applied. The amendments
also improve the explanations of the definition and ensure consistency
across all PFRSs and other pronouncements.
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2.3 Separare Fingncial Statements and Investment in & Subsidiary

These financial statements are prepared as the Company’s separate financial statements,
As allowed under existing financial reporting standards, the Company has not presented
consolidated financial statements because it is itself a wholly owned subsidiary of
UCPB, which presents consolidated financial statements available for public use that
comply with PFRS. Moreover, the Company's debt or equity securities are not traded
in organized financial market and the Company is not in the process of filing its
financial statements with securities commissions or other regulatory organization for
the purpose of issuing any class of instruments in an organized financial market.

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has control. The Company
controls an entity when (i) it has power over the entity; (i) it is exposed, or has rights
to, variable rerurns from its involvement with the entity; and, (iii) it has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Company reassesses
whether or not it controls an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three clements of controls indicated above.

Cumpmy s Investment in a Eui::lﬂ.l.ll.’f 1s accounted for in these separate financial
statements using the equity method. Under the equity method, all subsequent changes

to the owneeship intezest in the equity of the subsidiary are recognized in the
Company's carrying amount of the investment. Changes resultng from the profit or

loss generated and the changes in other comprehensive income by the subsidiary is
credited or charged against the Equity Share in Net Earnings of a Subsidiary and Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) account in the statements of comprehensive income.

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the investmentin a
subsidiary will not be recovered (see Note 2.13).

2.4 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contracmual
terms of the financial instrument. For purposes of classifying financial assets, an
instrument is considered 4 an equity instrument if it is non-derivative and meets the
definition of equity for the issuer in accordance with the criteria of PAS 32, Finawaia/
Instrsements: Presentation. All other non-derivative financial instruments are treated as
debt instruments,

fa) Classification, Measwrement and Reclarsification of Financal Assets in Accordance sith
FFRY 9 (Appicabie to 20718)
The classification and measurement of Anancial assers is deven by the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow

characteristics of the financial assets. All of the Company’s financial assets are
currently categonzed as financial assets at amortized cost.

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

® the asset is held within the Company's business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (“hold to collect™); and,

- sl . L] - .1 + a i .- - -
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Financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value phus
transaction costs. These are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment in value.

The Company's financial assets at amortized cost are presented in the statement
of financial position as Cash and Cash Equivalents, Loans and Receivables and
Refundable deposits under Other Assets account,

For purposes of cash flows reporting and presentation, cash and cash equivalents
comprise accounts with original marrities of three months or less, including
cash. These penenally include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk

of changes in value.

The Company can only reclassify financial assets if the objective of its business model
for managing those financial assets changes. Accordingly, the Company is required to
reclassify financial assets: (i) from amortized cost to FVTPL, if the objective of the
business model changes so that the amortized cost criteria are no longer mer; and,

() from FVTPL to amortized cost, if the objective of the business model changes so
that the amortized cost criteta start to be met and the charactenstc of the instrument'’s
contractual cash fows meet the amortized cost crteria.

A change in the objective of the Company's business model will take effect only
at the beginning of the next reporting period following the change in the business
model.

Classification, Measuremens and Reclavsification of Financial Assets in Accordance with
PAS 39 (Applicable to 2017)

Financial assets are assigned to different categories by management on initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired
and their characteristics. Financial assets other than those designated and
effective as hedging instruments are classified into the following categories:
financial-assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments
and available-for-sale financial assets.

All of the Company’s financial assets as of December 31, 2017 are categorized as
loans and recetvables.

Loans and recetvables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when
ﬂ:chmpmypmndmmmy,gmdsurmdmﬂymad:bmmthm
intention of trading the receivables. They are included in current assets, except
for those with maturities greater than 12mm:haaft¢nh=mdnfﬁ::r:pnmng
pencd, which are classified as non-current assets.

The Company’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are
presented as Cash and Cash Equivalents, Loans and Receivables and Refundable
deposits under Other Assets account in the statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and
short-term, highly liquid investments with original marurities of three months

of less, readily convertble to known amounts of cash and which are subject to

nsignificant sk of changes in value.
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Loans and recervables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method (EIR), less impairment loss, if any.

A Bnancial asset is reclassified out of the FVTPL category when the financial
asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term o under rare ciccumnstances. A financial asset that is reclassified out of the
FVTPL category is reclassified at its fair value on the date of reclassification.
Any gain or loss already recognized in profit or loss is not reversed. The fair
value of the financial asset on the date of reclassification becomes its new cost or
amortized cost, as applicable.

Recagnition of Interest and Leasing Incomve Using Eiffective Interest Raase Metbod

Interest income on fmancial assets measured at amortzed cost is recognized
using the EIR method. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount of premium on
acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of EIR. The Company
recognizes interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate
of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Henee, it
recognizes the effect of potennally different interest rates charged at vanous
stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments,
penalty interest and charpes).

The interest income on fnance lease receivables is allocated over the lease term
on & systematic and rational basis. The recognition of interest income on finance
lease is based on a pattern reflecting a constant peniodic rate of return on the
Company's net investment in the fnance lease. Lease payments relating to the
pedod, excluding costs for services, are applied against the gross investment in
the lease to reduce both the prancipal and the uneamed finance income.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for
reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative
adjustment to the ::n'j’mg:.mr:lunt of the asset in the balance sheet with an
increase or reduction in interest income.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying
amount of financial assets, except for those that are subsequently identfied as
credit-impaired and or are purchased or onginated credit-impaired assets.

For financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to inital
recognition, mnterest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the net carrying
amount of the fnandcal assets {after deduction of the loss allowance). If the asser
is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the
gross basis. For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying a credit-adjusted effective interest rate to
the amortized cost of the asset. The calculation of interest income does not
revert to a gross basis, even if the credit nsk of the asset subsequently improves.
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(d} Impazrmeent of Finangal Assets Under PFRY 9

From January 1, 2018, the Company assesses its ECL on a forward-looking basis
associated with its financial assets at amortized cost. Recognition of credit losses
15 no longer dependent on Company's identfication of a credit loss event.
Instead, the Cnmpm].r considers a broader range of information in assessing
credit osk and measunng expected credit losses, including past events, current
conditions, reasonable and supportble forecasts that affect collectability of the
furure cash flows of the financial assets,

For these finandal instruments, the allowance for eredit losses 13 based on
12-month ECL associated with the probability of default of a financial
instrument in the next 12 months (referred to as Stage 1" financial instruments).
Unless there has been a significant increase in credit osk (SICR) subsequent to
the inital recognition of the financial asset, a lifetme ECL (which are the
expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potential for default
at any point during the life of the financial asset) will be recognized (referred to
as ‘Stage 2' financial instruments). ‘Stage 2' financial instruments also include
those loan accounts and facilities where the credit msk has improved and have
been reclassified from ‘Stage 3°. A liferime ECL shall be recognized for “Stage 3'
fnancial mstruments, which include financial instruments that are subsequently
eredit-impaired, as well as purchased or orginated credit impaired assets.

The Company’s definition of credit risk and information on how credit sk is
siitigted by thie Compmiy ae discloesd in Note 4.2,

The key elements used in the calculation of ECL are a5 follows:

& Probabulity of defaslt (PD)) — It is an estimate of likelihood of a counterparty
defaulung on its financial obligation over a given time horizon.

» Lo given defauls (LGD) - It is an estimate of loss arising in case where a default
occurs 4t 4 given tme. It is based on the difference between the contracrual
cash flows of a financial instrument due from a counterparty and those that
the Company would expect to receive, including the realization of any
collateral.

» Exposmre af defandt (EAD) - It represents the gross carrying amount of the
fnancial instruments subject to the impairment calenlaton. In case of a loan

commutment, the Company shall include the undrawn balance (up to the
current contractual limit) at the dme of default should it oceur.

The Company messures the ECL of a finandal asset in such manner that reflects:
(i) the time value of money; and, (i) reasonable and supportable information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions that affect the collectability of the future cash flows of the financial
assets.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

I'EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEREEEEEEEEEEEEEE'E

'_11:5 C_n::m,p_m_:f's detatled ECL measurement as determined by the management
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{t) Impatrment of Finameial Assets Under PAS 39

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried
at cost has been incurred, the amount of the impairment loss is determined as the
difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future eredit losses that have not been incurred),
discounted at the financial asset’s onginal effective interest rate or current effective
mterest rate determined under the contract if the loan has a vadable interest rate,

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directy or through the use of
an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or loss. If
in & subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectvely to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized
I[mchisﬂnlmpmvmtm the debtor's eredit rating), the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The reversal shall
not result in a carrying amount of the Bnancial asset that exceeds what the amortized
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized at the date of the
impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognized in the profit or loss.

(1 Derecogmition of Financal Assets

The financial assets {or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of financial assets) are derecognized when the contractual fghts to receive
cash flows from the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and
all substantial risks and rewards of ownership have been mansferred to another
party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated lability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the rsks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues
to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for
the proceeds received.

25 Property and Equipment

All items of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and amortization and any impairment in value,

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of
bonging the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expendimres for
additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized while expenditures for
repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred,

Depreciation and amortization is computed on the straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Fumiture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years
Transportation equipment 5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assats of
five years or the terms of the lease, whichever is shorter,

An asset's carrving amanntt it written doorn iramsdiatale fe ke rasmraesbls smmesens 06 ol s
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The residoal values, estimared useful lives and method of depreciation and
amortization of property and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if approprate, at
the end of each reporting period.

An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to anse from the continued use of the asset. Any gain
or loss adsing on derecognition of the asser (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or
loss in the year the item is derecognized.

26 Investment Propertics

Investment properties represent properties held either to earn rental income or for
capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business,
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

The Company measures investment properties, which include land and building
acquired by the Company from defaulting borrowers, under the cost model. The cost
of an investment property comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs
mncurred. Cost 1s initally recognized at fair value of the investment properties unless:
(i) the exchange ransaction lacks commercial substance; or, (i) neither the fair value of
the asset received nor the asset given up can be reliably measured. The difference
between the fair value of the asset received, as determined by professional appraisers,
Eﬂdthﬁﬂﬂjmgimmmtﬂfthehmutdﬂdﬂumghfurcdmmnm as
Gain or loss on foreclosure under the Other Income account in the staternent of
comprehensive income. Investment properties, except land, are depreciated using the
straight ne basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from five to ten
years.

Direct operating expenses, such as repairs and maintenance and real estate taxes are
normally charged against current operations in the year in which these costs are
incurred. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the-asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(see Note 2.13).

Investment properties are derecognized upon disposal or when permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of investment properties is recognized
as Gain or loss on sale of assets acquired under the Other Income account in the year
of retirement or disposal.

2.7 Other Properties Acquired

Orther properties acquired include chattel acquired in settlement of loan receivables.
These are stated at cost, which is the fair value at recognition date, less accurnulated

depreciation and any impairment in value,

The Company applies the cost model in accounting for other properties acquired.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
three to five years. The estimated useful life and the depreciation method are
reviewed pediodically to ensure that the period and the method of depreciation are
consistent with the sxmected nattern af sennomie hensfita feam itamme af ahar




The :m‘ying values of other properties acquired are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. If such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable
amounts (see Note 2.13).

2.8 Financial Liabilities

Financial habilities, which include bills payable, deposit on lease contracts and
accounts payables and other habilities (except tax-related liabilities) are recognized
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual terms of the instrument. All
interest-related charges incurred on a financial ability are recognized as an expense in
profit or loss as part of Interest Expense in the statement of comprehensive income.

Bills payable are raised to support the long-term funding of operations. Finance

charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue
costs, are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest

method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that
these are not sertled in the perod in which they arise,

Accounts payable and other liabilities are recognized initally at their fair values and
subsequently measured at amoruzed cost, using effective interest method for
maturities beyond one year, less sertlement payments.

Dividend distnbutions to shareholders are recognized as financial liabilities upon
declaration by the Company.

Financial habilines are derecognized from the statement of finandal positdon only
when the obligations are exonguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration, The difference between the carrying amount of the Anancial habiliry
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.9 Offserting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial abilities are offset and the resulting net amount,
considered as & single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the statement
of financial position when the Company currently has legally enforceable right to set-
off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize
the asset and settle the Liability simultanecusly. The right of set-off must be available
at the end of the reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on a future event. It
must also be enforceable in the normal course of business, in the event of default, and
in the event of insolvency or bankruptey; and must be legally enforceable for both
entty and all counterparties to the financial instraments.

210 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow
of economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount
of the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of
a legal or constructive obligation that has resulted from past events.
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Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting
penod, including the risks and uncerainties associated with the present obligation.
Where there are a number of similas obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations 2s 2 whole.
When time value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their
present values using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the dsks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
pedod and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible cutflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot
be measured rebiably, no hability is recognized in the financial statements. Similarly,
possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet the
recognition cotena of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized
in the financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Company can
be virmally certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is
recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

2.11 Other Income and Expense Recognition

Prior to January 1, 2018, revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be
reliably measured; it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
Company; and the expenses and costs incurred and to be incurred can be measured
reliably. Upon adoption of PFRS 15 beginning january 1, 2018, revenue is recognized
only when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring
control of the promised services to the customer. A contract with a customer that
results in a recognized financial instrument in the Company’s financial statements may
be partially within the scope of PFRS 9 and partially within the scope of PFRS 15. In
such case, the Company first applies PFRS 9 to separate and measure the part of the
contract that is in-scope of PFRS 9, and then applies PFRS 15 to the residual part of
the contract. Expenses and costs, if any, are recognized in profit or loss upon
utlization of the assets or services or at the date these are incurred. All finance costs
are reported in profit or loss on sccreal basis.

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific crteria in order to
determine if it is acting as a principal or agent. The Company concluded that ir is
acong as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
fa} Revenwes within the scope of PFRY 15

(i) Penaities and Service foes
Penalties and service fees are recognized only upon collection or accrued
when there is reasonable degree of certainty as to its collectabiliry.

(i) Gair (Losi) on Sak of Assets Acguired
Gain (loss) on sale of assets acquired anses from the disposals of investment
properties and other properties acquired. Revenue is recognized upon completion
of earnings process and the collectability of the sale prices is reasonably assured.

(i) Miscellaneons Tncome
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Interest and leasing income are recognized in profit or loss for all financia]
instruments messured at amortized cost using the EIR method of accounting

[see Note 2.4(c)),
(%) Gain (Loss) on Foreclsures

Gain (loss) on fareclosed assets is recognized upon derecognition of existing
recervables through foreclosure of agsers used as collateral and is determined

ff&;i'Gd:E'lrrf_a.r.g.l o Sade of Recefvabies
Gain (loss) on sale of receivables is recognized upcn sale of loans and
receivables, without recourse, wherein the selling price is greater (less) than
the carrying amount of loans and recervables sold.

212 Leases
The Company accounts for jrs leases as follows:
@l Company as Lessee

Leases which do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and
benefits of ownership of the asser aze classified as operating leases Operating
lease payments (net of a0y mcentive received from the Jess

expense in profit or loss on a steaight-line basis over the

(8)  Company as Lessor
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2.13 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Company’s investment in a subsidiary, property and equipment, investment
properties and other non-financial assets are subject to impairment testing whenever
events of changes in drcumstances indicate that the carrying amount of those assets
may not be recoverable,

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result,
assets are tested for impairment either individually or at the cash-generating unit level

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s or
cash-generating unit's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in
use, management estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating
unit and determines the suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked
to the Company’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects
of asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for each
cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles,
such as market and asset-specific sk factors.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss

previously recognized may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the
asset’s or cash generating unit's recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

2. 14 Borrowing Costs

Botrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (ie., an
agset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended usc or sale)
are capitabized as part of cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs
commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred
and actvities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalization ceases when substantally all such activities are complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligtble for capitalization.

215 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of current tax and deferred
tax not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligatons to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or
unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and
tax laws applicable to the fiscal peniods to which they relate, based on the axshle
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as
component of tax expense in profit or loss.
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Deeferred tax 15 accounted for using the liability method, on temporary differences at
the end of each reporting period between the tax base of assets and Labilines and their
u.'m'mg amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the hability method, with
certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all mxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deducoble temporary
differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits 1o the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductble temporary differences can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporing penod and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will be available to allow such
deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the pedod when the asset is realized or the hiability is settled provided such tax
rates have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting penod.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
penod and reduced to the extent that 1t is probable that sufficent taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

The measurement of deferred tax liahilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and Habilities.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or labilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.

216 Related Party Transactions and Relationships
Related party transacoons are transfers of resources, services or oblipanons berween
the Company and its related partics, regardless whether a poce is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. These parties include: (1) individuals owning, directly or indirectdy
one or more intermedianes, control or are controlled by, or under commeon
control with the Company; (b) associates; and, (c) individuals owning, directly or

indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant
influence over the Company and close members of the family of any such individual.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relancnship and not merely on the legal form.

217 Egquity
Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Revaluation reserves renresent rthe acmmmnlated ehare in ather comnrehenesires ineomes
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Appropriated retained eamings pertain to the following:
fa) Accumulated amount set aside for stock dividend declaration purposes.

8)  Accumulated amount of appropration from Unapproprated retzined carnings
made by the Company ansing from the excess of the one-percent general loan
loss provisions for outstanding loans as required by the BSP under Circular
No. 1011, Guidedimes on the Adgptien of PFRY # (Circular No. 1011) over the
computed allowance for ECL for Stage 1 fnancial instruments (see Note 15.3).

Unappropriated retained eamnings represent all current and pror pedod results of
operations as reported in the profit or loss section of the statement of comprehensive
income, reduced by the amounts of dividends declared, if any.

2.18 Evears After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Company’s
financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the
financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are
disclosed when matedial to the fnancial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with PFRS
requires management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts
reported in the fnancial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are
continually evaluated and are based on historical expenience and other factors,
mﬂudmg expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may ulimately differ from these estimates.

3.1 Cntical Management Judgments in Applying Accounang Policies

In the process uf:pi:rl:ring the Company's accounting policies, management has made
the following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a) Esaluation of Business Model Applied in Managing Financial Instruments (2018)

Upon adoption of PFRS 9, the Company developed business models which
reflect how it manages its portfolio of financial instruments. The Company's
business models need not be assessed at entity level or as a whole but shall be
applied at the level of a portfolio of financial inscraments (Le., group of financial
Instruments that are managed together by the Company) and not on an
instrument-by-instrument basis (.., not based on intention or specific
characteristics of indwidual financial instrument).

In determining the classification of a financial instrament under PFRS 9, the
Company evaluates in which business model a financial instrument or a portfolio
of financial instruments belong to taking into consideration the objectives of
each business model established by the Company (e.g., held-for-trading,
generanng accrual income, direct matching to a specific liability) as those relate to

L ST PR GSG, [-R NI S Ay, RS | S ——




IEEEEEREREEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEERER.

-20-

() Testing the Cash Flow Characteristics of Fimanctal Assets and Continsing Evaluation of the

()

Business Model (2018)

In determining the classification of financial assets under PFRS 9, the Company
assesses whether the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal outstanding, with
interest representing time value of money and credit rsk associated with the
principal amount owtstanding. The assessment as to whether the cash flows
meet the test is made in the currency in which the financial asset is denominated.
Any other contracrual term that changes the timing or amount of cash flows
(wnless it is 2 variable interest rate that represents time value of money and credit
nsk) does not meet the amortized cost coteda. In cases where the reladonship
between the passage of time and the interest rate of the financial instrument may
be imperfect, known as modified time value of money, the Company assesses the
modified tme value of money feature to determine whether the financial
instrument still meets the SPPI eritedion. The objective of the assessment is to
determine how different the undiscounted contractual cash flows could be from
the undiscounted cash flows that would acise if the tme value of money element
was not Company modified (the benchmark cash flows). If the resulting
difference is significant, the SPPI crterion is not mer. In view of this, the
Company considers the effect of the modified time value of money element in
each reporting period and cumulatively over the life of the finandal instrument.

In addition, PFRS 9 emphasizes that if more than an infrequent sale is made out
of a portfolio of financial assets cartied ar amortized cost, if any, an entity should
assess whether and how such sales are consistent with the objectve of collecting
contractual cash flows. In making this judgement, the Company considers
certain circumstances documented in its business model manual to assess that an
increase in the frequency or value of sales of financial instruments in a particular
period is not necessary inconsistent with 4 held-to-collect business model if the
Company can explain the reasons for those sales and why those sales do not
reflect a change in the Company’s objective for the business model.

Dyistinctton Between Investment Properties and Owmer-managed Properties

The Company determines whether a property qualifies as investment property.
In making its judgment, the Company considers whether the property generates
cash flows largely independent of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attobutable not only 1o the
property but also to other assets used in the production or supply process.

Dirtinetion Betwesn Operating and Fingme Leares

The Company has entered into various lease agreements. Critical judgment was
exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an
operating ot 4 finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant
tisk and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements,
Failure to make the dght judgment will result in either overstatement or
understatement of assets and liabilines. Management has determined that it

has transferred all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties which are leased out on finance lease armangements.
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(e) Classification of Acquired Properties

The Company classifies its acquired propertics as Property and equipment under
Other Assets account if used in operations, as Other properties acquired under
Other Assets account if the Company expects that the properties will be
recovered poncpally through sale rather than continuing use of the asset, as
Investment Properties if held for currently undetermined future use and is
tegarded as held for capital appreciadon.

() Reioguition of Pravisions and Contingencic

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are
discussed in Note 2.10 and disclosures on relevant provisions and contingencies
are presented in Note 21.

J.2 Key Sources of Estimarion Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of esumation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have significant risks
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Labilities
within the next reporting period:

fa) Etmation of Allewane for ECL. (2018)

When measuring allowance for ECL for relevant categories of financial assets,
management applies judgment in defining the criteria in assessing whether a
financial asset has experienced SICR since initial recognition, and in the
estimation of the contractual cash flows due from counterparty and those that
the Company would expect to receive, taking into account the cash flows from
the realization of eollateral and integral credit enhancements. The Company’s
ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying
assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavior of

les (e.g., the likelihood of counterparties defaulting and the resulting
losses). The computation of the ECL also consider the use of reasonable and
supportable foreard-looking information, which is based on assumptions for the
future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect
cach other that may result in different levels of loss allowance.

Significant factors affecting the cstimates on the ECL model include:

¢ internal rating matrix which determines the PD to be assigned to a finandial asser;
* crteria for assessing if there has been a SICR and when a financial asset will
be transferred between the three stages;
* the Company's definition of default for different segments of credit exposures
that considers the regulatory requirements;
* establishing groups of similar financial assets (Le., segmentation) for the
purposes of measuring ECL on a collective basis;
* establishment of LGD parameters based on historical recovery mtes of claims

against defaulted counterparties across different group of financial
instraments; and,

* establishing the number and relative weichtines nf fnreard lnnlking srens e
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(d)

2.

The explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation technigues used in
measuring ECL and the analysis of the allowance for ECL on various groups of
financial instruments is further discussed in Note 4.2,

Impairmens of Loans and Recrivables (2077)

‘The Company reviews its loans and receivables portfolio 1o assess impairment at
least on an annual basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should be
recognized in profit or loss, the Company makes judgment as to whether there is
any observable data indicating that there is 2 measurable decrease in the
estmated future cash flows from the portfolic before the decrease can be
identified with an individual item in that portfolio. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment
status of borrowers or issuers in a group, of national or local economic
conditions that correlates with defaults on assets in the group. Management used
estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credir risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash
flows are reviewed regulary to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss expedience.

The carrying value of loans and receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 8.

Estimatton of Usefiel Lives of Investment Properties, Property and Equitawent, and Other
Propertier Acquired

The Company estimates the useful lives of investment properties, property and
equipment, and other properties acquired based on the period over which the
assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of
investment properties, property and equipment and other properties acquired are
reviewed penodically and are updared if expectations differ from previous
estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence
and legal or other limits on the use of the assers.

The carrying amounts of investment properties, property and equipment and
other properties acquired are analyzed in Notes 10 and 11, respectively, Based

on management's assessment as at December 31, 2018 md EEII? there is no
:h:ngtmmtaduuﬁﬂlwmﬁfﬂ:m:m:mdunng those years. Actual results,

however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by changes in
factors mentioned above,

Fair VValse Meassrenents of Investment Properties and Orber Properties Aogutred

The Company’s investment properties and other properties acquired consist of
parcels of land and buildings and machineries and other equipment which are
held for capital appreciation or held under operating lease agreements, and are
measured using the cost model. The estimated fair values of investment
properties and other properties acquired as disclosed in Note 6.3 are determined
on the basis of appraisals conducted by in-house and independent professional
appraisers applying the relevant valuation methodologies as discussed therein.




For investment properties with appraisal conducted prior to the end of the
current reporting peniod, management determines whether there are significant
circumstances during the intervening period that may require adjestments or
changes in the disclosure of fair value of those properties.

A significant change in key inputs and sources of information used in the
determination of the fair value disclosed for those assets may result in an
adjustment in the carrying amount of the assets reported in the financial
statements if their fair value will indicate evidence of impairment.

(¢) Determination of Realizable Amount of Deferred Tace Assets

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting perdod
and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be udlized. Management assessed that the deferred tax assets recognized
as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 will be fully utilized in the coming years. The
carrying value of deferred tax assets as of those dates is disclosed in Note 18,

il Impairment of Non-financial Assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset
or a cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Estimation uncertainty relates to
assumptions about future operating results and the determinadon of a suitable
discount rate (see Note 2.13). Though management believes that the assumprions
used in the estmation of fair values reflected in the financial statements are
appropoate and reasonable, significant changes in those assumptions may matedially
affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss could
have a material adverse effect on the results of operations,

Impairment losses recognized on Investment Properties and Other Assets are
discussed in Notes 10 and 11, respectvely.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company is exposed to 4 vasety of financial dsks which result from both its
operating, investing and financing activites and the business in which it operates.

The Company's osk management is coordinated with its Parent Bank, in close
cooperation with the BOD, and focuses on actively securing the Company's short to
medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.

The Company does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative
purposes not does it wote options. The significant financial risks to which the
Caompany is exposed to aze deseribed below and in the succeeding pages.

4.1 Inrerest Rare Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the differences between the timing of the rate changes
and the timing of cash fows (repricing risk). Ar December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates through its cash and cash

cawvalents laene and recetrahlas and kille rovahla A1 cihes Basmsial o esmse need
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The Company’s cash and cash equivalents are subject to insignificant risk of changes
in value. Loans and receivables and bills payable have fixed interest rates throughout
their short term durations and are not sensitive to prevailing market rate fluctuations.

The Company carefully analyzes interest rate risk exposure based on the interest
rate gap of its portfolic of cash and cash equivalents, loans and receivables and hills
payable. The focus of the analysis is the impact of changes in interest rates of its
interest sensitive liabilities relative to the fixed interest rate for its loans and
receivables, The Company ensures that its loanable funds are offered to borrowers
at & reasonable proce and nterest which would give favorable interest margin over
the term of the instruments. In certain cases, the Company will reprice its loans
and leases depending on the agreement with customers and/ or market price.

The interest rate gap analyses as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are presented below.

i
o 80 Threx O 0o More
‘Theee Motk Five Than Five
— Mlemths = OweYear = Yesrm Years Tozal
Ametr
e and cah equivalenss PoognsEisds P - 3 : . P 9363045
Loans and receivahles® S L QR W C T T — e N kB T
900, TLREF15 IRZATT54E 1, B 4,436, 7RO O IAZ06T 8155065310
Laalslity-

Bilis payilic — SEZEO0000 L1665 66T 2 : L1014, 165 557
Periadiz gap E_ZLIEL0ES E_MOEINE POLEMENIE P #43047 P L0SZLI9E643
Cumulathr gap (E__ZLTHLO0ES) B 7MOS.7% E LWSAAAGSTE P L0S279SA4Y P LOSLT9A64]

2017
D o Theee Oz b Mese
Theee tboentha o bove Than Frm
—mlonths ___ ___Coe Ve ek Years e Lzl
Agsri:
Cash and cash equivalenrs P OW366BE P . P ] P . P B0316488
Loars snd receivables® — LAY 150150 . IS6TORISIY _ IAZZSTAD  __AM4XAS50R
1,526, 759,005 192415504 1,567 0,517 1B, 228 770 3,304,530, 5586
Liabibsp-

Halls paratide — Mg aN0s0] ____ISATS0O000 1S S55 556 - 1315616157
Pemiodic gap E o amigod (B ANMOM) P AASIEMAE P IEZSTN P_LIATI144%0
Cizedasive g E_Sliannand P _GIRISENWE P _LOGSQEEAGT P _i9RTO1443 P _LORT0144%

* Lapamr amal evcestaaiky sbssiied 1o eredlit rivk aussrments wnledh rrmdngl ol dirred by tassms, sowareed finsaor ouoe, copitsied

4.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if 2 counterparty to a financial instrument may
fail to meet its contractual obligations to the Company. Credit risk is found in all
activities where success depends on counterparty, issuer ot barrower performance. It
arises any time when the Company funds are extended, committed, invested or
otherwise exposed through actual or implied contractual agreements, whether
reflected on or off the statement of financial posidon. Credit nsk is not limited to the
loan portfolio.
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The Company uses sk asset acceptance eniteria when initially considering a prospect,
When the prospect does not meet these criteria, the Company normally does not
further pursue the account. When the prospect passes the criteria, the Company
performs quahtative and quantitative analyses to determine creditworthiness of the
prospect. The qualitative analysis inclodes evaluation of the borrower’s ownership,
management, product, production/process, industry, security and collateral, suppliers,
customers, etc. The quantitative analysis includes review of past and present finaneial
condition and future expectations based on assumptions and projections.

The Company is also required to follow rules and regulations of the BSP on directors,
officers, stockholders and related interests (DOSRI), single borrower's limit, account
classification, general and specific loan reserve policy and others. With respect to
bank deposits, the Company’s BOD approves the banks with which the Company
shall deal with.

fa) Credir Rirk Asseciment

The Company's credit risk assessment is performed based on the different
segments of financial asset portfolio such as lease contract, loans and finance
receivables. The Company also established credit risk assessment procedures for
sales contract receivables and other risk assets including accounts receivables.

Loans, regardless if the accounts have been fully paid, extended or renewed in
subsequent year or period, are subjected to evaluation for possible losses. The
Company's estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is
complex and requires the use of models, as the exposure vares with changes in
matket conditions (or industry performance), expected cash flows, and the
passage of ume. The assessment of credit nisk of a portfolio of assets requires
further estimations as to the PDs occurring, of the associated loss ratios, and of
default correlations between counterparties; accordingly, such eredit risk is
measured using PD, LGD, and EAD, for purposes of measuring ECL.

The Company uses its 10-grade internal credit rsk rating (ICRR) system to
determine any evidence of potential deterfioration in the quality of an instrument
that take into consideration both quantitative and qualitative criteria. The rating
system classifies performing accounts from a scale of one (1) indicating an
extremely strong capacity of the counterparty to meet financial commirments
down to ratings lower than seven (7) demonstrating weakness in the
counterparty’s economic and financial condition that could lead to payment
default on financial commitments. The model on nsk ratings is assessed and
updated regularly. Validation of the risk rating is performed by the Risk
Management Division to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across the
credit porifolio. Past due accounts and those that exhibit the characteristics of
classified loans shall be risk-rated following the guidelines on credit classification
per BSP Manual of Regulations for Non-Bank Financial Institutions and under
Section 41780}, ic., Espedally Mentioned, Substandard, Doubtful or Loss.
These guidelines are used by the Company to assign the individually assessed
loan within a partcular portfolio segment to a specific stage category under the
PFRS 9 loan impairment standards (i.e., Stage 1, 2, 3).




In the process of applying the Company’s ICRR system in determining
indications of impairment on the loans and receivables, the Company analyzes
the credit quality of the borrowers and counterparties through 2 set of cotena
and rating scale classified into the following:

High grade 1 Excellen:
2 Serong
Seandard grade 3 Good
4 Satisfactary
] Accepahle
L/ Wiatchbisy
Swbsmadard grade 7 Especally mentioned
] Substandand
Imipaired q Drouheful
10 Loss

(1) Exellent — The rating is given to a bormmower with a very low probability of
going into default in the coming year. The borrower has a high degree of
stability, substance and diversity and has sccess to public markets to rmaise
substantial amounts of funds at any tme; has 2 very strong debt service
capacity and has conservative balance sheet leverage. The track record of
the borrowes in terms of profit is very good and exhibits highest quality
under virtually all economic conditions.

(2) Stromg — This rating is given to borrowers with low probability of going into
default in the coming year. Normally has a comfortable degree of stabiliry,
substance and diversity. Under normal market conditions, borrower has
good access to public markets to raise funds. Bormrower has a strong market
and financial positon with a history of successful performance, Overall
debt service capacity is deemed very strong; critical balance sheet ratios are
conservatve.

(3) Geod— This rating is given to smaller corporations with limited access to
public capital markets or to altemnative financial markets. Probability of
default is quite low and it bears some degree of stability and substance.
However, borrower may be susceptible to cyclical changes and more
concentration of business sk, by product or by market, Typical for this
type of borrower is the combination of comforable asset protection and an
acceptable balance sheet structure.

The debt service capacity of the borrower is strong and has reported profits
for the past three years and is expected to be profitable again in the current
Fear.

4) Sakgfadery — This rating is given to & bormower where clear sk elements
exist, the probability of default is somewhat greater and normally has limited
access to public markets. The probability is reflected in volatlity of eamings
and overall perfformance. The borrower should be sble to withstand normal
business cycles, but any prolonged unfavorable economic period would
create deterioration beyond acceptable levels, The borrower has the
combination of reasonably sound asset and cash flow protection with
adequate debt service capacity and has reported profits in the past year and
is expected to report a profit in the current year,
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(3) Accsptable — This rating is given to a borrower whose sk elements are

sufficiently pronounced to withstand normal business cycles but any
unfavorable economic and/or market period would ereate an

immediate detedomation beyond acceptable levels. The rsk to this barrower
15 soll acceptable as there is sufficient cash flow either historieally or
expected for the furere; new business or projected finance transacton; an
existng borrower where the nature of the exposure represents a higher risk
because of extraordinary developments but for which a decreasing risk
within an acceptable period can be expected,

(&) Watchiisr — This rating is given to a borrower which incurs net losses and has
salient financial weaknesses, specifically in profitability, reflected on its
financial statements. Credit exposure is not at risk of loss at the moment
but performance of the borrower has weakened and unless present trends
are reversed, could lead to losses.

(7) Especially Mentioned — This rating is given to 3 borrower that exhibits
potential weaknesses that deserve management's close attention. No
immediate threat to the repayment of the loan exists through normal
course of business but factors may exist that could adversely affect the
credit worthiness of the barrowes,

(8) Swbstandard — This rating is given to a borrower where repayment of the
loan, through normal course of business, may be in jeopardy due to adverse
events. There exists the possibility of future losses to the instirution unless

given closer supervision.

(%) Denbifui — This rating is given to a borrower who is unable or unwilling to
service debt over an extended period of time and near furure prospects of
orderly debt service is doubtful. Existing facts, conditions, and values make
full collection or liquidation highly improbable and in which substantial lass
is probable.

(10) Lassr — This rating is given to s bormower whose loans or portions thereof
are considered uncollectible. The collectible amount, with no collateral or
which collateral is of lirtle value, is difficult to measure and more practcal
to write-off than to defer even though partial recovery may be obtained in
the future.

Exgorure i Credit Risk

The amount of loans and receivables, net of any allowances for impairment and
unearned discount and interest, cash and cash equivalents and refundable deposits
recorded in the financial statements represent the Company’s maximum exposure
to credit risk without taking into account the value of any collateral obrained.

The Company’s financial assets subject to credit risks are categorized under loans
and receivables and are broken down as follows:

_Note 2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 7 P 93,683,945 P 90,316,588
Loans and receivables a 2,681,630,440 3,149,293 311

Refundable deposits 11 179,767 779,767
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As part of Cnmpmy policy, bank deposits are only maintained with reputable
mstitutions. Cash in banks which are insured by the Philippine Deposit

Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a maximum coverage of P0.50 million per

depositor per banking institution, as provided for under R.A. No. 9576,

Amendment to Charter of PDIC, are still subjected to credit disk.

The tables below show the credit quality per class of loans and receivables, based
on the Company’s rating system (gross of allowance for credit and impairment

losses and unearned discounts) as of December 31, 2018,

— Smapel 0 Swmged 0 Saaged  _ Toml

Recetvablon from cusiomens:
Hagh gradls P LT e P - P 1008711 P 12,557,507
Seannidan] grache 1,546,435 802 409,082 008 41,320,510 3, 5, D)
Siskatandazed prade - 26,215,042 211388478 37,600, 50)
Iermrasre] - - ASTRILHE RS TELA40E
— 15RO 4267080 EALSIRNT  _ LO7W ] A

Dnber rocervabliens

High pracie 11,618,676 : . 11618476
Seandand grade 1,478,500 2,424,780 95,638 3.998,527
Substandand prade - 2009, 749 124,061 2138510
It : - G AYT fiSHLEAT
1A0FT {88 4 4348 530 914,115 15 44 050

ELITLA0RASY EB_4MI00478 F__ESL416450 E_J09L7IT.408

Movements dunng 2018 for receivables from customers and other receivables

follow:

—ntigrl . Siagel @ Suged 0 Toml
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THMMEME P O3II4.213,008
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Asser dererogrored e cepand [ 4030380061} | 42 B 080G EEOENZGIDY [ 4530, TR4N0)
Amaiinn wemes alf . : i 10 458 740 | 104 44, 740
Trunatfer voy(from) Seage 1 { T DT AR B 258, T 0,538,772 -
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Orbser poceivablen
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Aspety devrecogrered o repmd { 19.817,642) { 1,880,432 | L LT 22551 428
“Trunsfer 1o, [feom) Smge 1 { 1,635,260 1422510 M2 0L =
“Transfer o, [foem]) Soge 3 108y 11561 | 125 bt} -

— LIRS LM 214305 18 445 050

ELILaias E_ AN E__SLAIGANY EB_ASLIZTALS




-9,

The table below shows the credit quality of the Company's loans and receivables
23 of December 31, 2017.

Individually impaired
Grade 1: Fully and /or partally secured P 491 041,339
Grade 2: Unsecured 247709 437
(Gross amount TAE TR0 TTG
Allowance for impairment (—173.163.341)
Carrying amount —260,067.435
Neither past due nor impaired
Gross amount 2,741 262 551
Unearned discoant and interest (___157,536,675)
Carryping amount _2583 725876
Total carrying amount P3.149.203,311
An analysis of changes in the ECL allowances in 2018 is as follows:
—Beaged . Seaged = Suged Tonai
Beorhvables frum rustomrns
Bulenee t January 1, 2016 - S P40 P SMZII530 P 52734388
Pravisions (sevessals! - i 6,880, 524) 82981, 26% 75,500,545
Hechsuiication /erlneasm | 1601, 10) 25808 7.02,165) { 9,487 841)
Arnounrs woren aff - . i 10004 B617 7 { LT Ea ]
Teamafer 1o/ {from) Seage 2 196,385 { 196,545) : X
Teasmafes vof{Brom) Sage 1 — ADEE . SBEAO0S | 2340619 -
—_— o TISGS #HISSEI8R 403 ASA4IN
Other rracivablon-
Bulurce it pursnry 1, 2015 . 10,903 664,908 675,593
P . 1188 il el 33008
Rechuaniication/ ceallocason - 3En . LEN
Teumafer v ferm) Srage 1 : 1BLSTH | ABLITE 2
: XA T57 e 0% _ Tarea
- I E__ 210978 E 40414 E__gdiTiai

The breakdown of provision (recovery) for impairment losses for the pedod
December 31, 2018 is shown below.

— Swgel = Seped 00 Staged Togal
Recorrablen from customen P . P 5B, F AL XS P 75, 500,545
xher recervables . 2383 RS AL [

e (E__GEDSI}E _SLMILEM P T5SIL083

The amounts of “Transfers to (from)” include the changes in the ECL on the
exposures transferred from one stage to another during the year,

The increase in the ECL allowances was doven by an increase in the gross size of
the portfolio and movements between stages as a result of increase in credit risk
and improvement in economic conditions.
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(e} Collateral Held ar Security and Otber Credit Enbancements

The Company holds collateral against loans and receivables in the form of
mortgage interests over property. Estimates of fair value are based on the value
of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing, and generally are not updated,
except when a loan is individually assessed as impaired.

2018 2017

Against impaired

Chattel mortgage P 123,263,183 P 84,533,499

Real estate mortgage 46,834,486 46,802,986

Finance lease 154,725,980 268,201 874
Against neither past due but not impaired

Chattel mortgage 543,253,716 638,877,356

Real estate mortgage 80,154,118 28223474

Finance lease _ BE2BR5.290 _ B25.413.926

PLB3LIGTII ELEZZ033113
(d) Concentrations of Credit Rirk

The Company monitors concentrations of credit sk by sector. An analysis of
concentrations of credit risk at the reporting date is shown below.

—Casb and Cash Equivalents . ____Loans and Receivables®

201E . 2018 2017
Concentration by sector
Financial instimntions P 93683545 P Q0316688 P - F .
Trading/Commercial . : 956,575,689 1,148,301 426
Manufactunng = - B16,992 618 B33, 770,741
Sernices - . 266,500,706 202332911
Otthers - - LO33003.352 1034709 830

E_S36E5.045 F__S0MGGRE P AMTIZELIGS P 1214213908
*Loans awd receivabler mbgected fo ereds? rink aiseiements ecchudy remdug) nalve, deferred learing inoome,
smecprmed fTaamoe dncnewe, sapitakived interert and other charpes, other receivabier and aliswance for modit ond
i :

The Company maintains & general policy of avoiding excessive exposure in any
particular sector of the Philippine economy. The Company actively seeks to
increase its exposure in industry sectors, which it believes to possess attractive
growth opportunities. Conversely, it actively seeks to reduce its exposure in
industry sectors where growth potential is minimal

4.3 Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the current and prospective tisk to earnings or capital arsing from the
Company’s inability to meet its obligations when they become due without incurring
unacceptable losses. The Company manages this risk by widening its money market
customer base, mamtaning adequate credit facilities with banks, and following
guidclines set by the BSP on staturory and liquidity reserve palicy.
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As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company's financial liabilities
{except tax-related lkabilities) have contractual maturities which are presented below.,

2018
One o More than More than
three three months ODE VAT T
—tmonths = ioopeyear _threeyears _ Toml
Balls paysble P 930433836 B 1907731056 P - P A30.204 941
Accrued expenses and
ather habilities 115,630,554 200,000,000 - 315,650 5%4
]}:Pnn! a1 ] Il,-.l.l.lt COntEacts ﬂm& ﬂmﬂiz lﬂmﬂﬂ.ﬁ _ﬁlﬂiﬁ
ELOSRES6RA4TF E 40755177 B _177.259.33¢ P L709.582.988
2017
e o Maore than More than
three thres months ome year fo

—months . focncycar . thoecyeams . Total 0

Bills payabls P 05225134 P 21128138% P 266300657 P 1382807190
Accred expenses and

othes Habilites 75,561,417 200,000,000 275,661,417
Dreposit on lease contracts 53,727,700 1],& S8 183735752 255 271 04

ELOisplssss EZDO0BRDTS EG4R036410 E L21LI30G4S

The contractual maturities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ from the carrying
vilues of the babilides at the reporting date.

5 CATEGORIES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

5.1 Carying Amounts and Fair Values by Caregory

The carrying amounts and fair values of the categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities presented in the statements of financial positon, at amortzed cost, are

shown below.
20IE F- 1) I —
Casrying Fair Casryimg Fai
JMotes 0 __Amdiiets 0 . Wil 00 . Smewni 0 Walurs
Financial Areris
Cach and rash eqevalesss 7 F OSLAELGEE P ABIANME P BOVIGSERE P 0LA4ER
Loans snd receivables ] T G5, 440 m L4929 310 3,068, 142500
Refurdabs deposit 1 778,767 T3] 19367
LIS FLIRTLET PASMMEOS PLlSTONacH
Firsarn il Liebilities
Bk parable: 12 F L4, 166687 P L1 DRE6ETY P16 414157 P1.514 614,157
Aeesisem payabics snd
ocher nbelities 12 15, 630, S0 SEEML 275.601,417 2T L81 417
Creposit on lease conmwes ] 263 T4545Y __ ZELT4EASY __ ISNITHOME L SSa MLl

BLiilS4T)4 EAGELSHLIN ELE4SS4R615 PLA4SSHEL1S

See Notes 2.4 and 2.8 for the description of the accounting policies for each category
of financial instruments. A descrpton of the Company’s risk management objectives
and policies for Anancial nstruments is provided in Note 4.
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5.2 Offserting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Company has not set-off financial instruments in 2018 and 2017 and does not
have relevant offsetting arrangements, Currently, financial assets and financial
liabilities are settled on a gross basis; however, each party of the lease agreement will
have the option to settle such amount on a net basis in the event of default of the
other party. As such, the Company’s lease contract receivables from the lessees, net
of deferred leasing income and allowance for impairment, amounting to P1.02 billion
and P1.03 billion as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, can be offset

by the amount of deposits on lease contracts amounting to P263.75 million and
P253.27 million as of Decemnber 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 8), The
balance of lease contract receivables net of deposits on lease contracts amounted to
P0.76 billion and P0.78 billion as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Company also has cash in banks to which it has outstanding bills payable. In case
of Company’s default on repayment of bills payable, cash in bank amounting to

P10.30 million and P14.88 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, can
be partially applied against the ourstanding bills pnynbl: amounting to P1.11 billion and
P1.32 billion as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 12),

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT AND DISCLOSURE
6.1 Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PFRS 13, Farr 1Valve Meamremens, the fair value of financial assets
and financial liabilities and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a
recurring or non-recurting basis and those assets and lisbilities not measured ar fair
walue but for which fair value is disclosed in accordance with othes relevant PFRS, are
categorzed into three levels based on the significance of inputs used to measure the
fair value. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

®  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
habihnes that an entity can access at the measurement date;

*  Level Z: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., denived from poces); and,

»  Level 3: inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the
lowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of determining the market value at Level 1, a market is regarded as
active if quoted pnmm:ﬂdﬂgmdreglﬂady available from an exchange, dealer,
brokes, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and ugu.'lulvncm:nnguu.:kﬂ transactions on an arm's length basis,



RN R RN LR

- 13-

For financial assets which do not have quoted market price, the fair value is
determined by wsing generally acceptable pricing models and valuation technigues or
by reference to the current market of another instrument which is substantally the
same after talang into account the related credit rsk of counterparties, or is calculated
based on the expected cash flows of the underlying net asset base of the instrument.

When the Company uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable
market data where it is available and relies as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine the fair value of an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. Otherwise, it is
incladed in Level 3.

Management considers that the carrying values of financial assets, such as cash and
cash equivalents, loans and other receivables and refundable deposits, and financial
liabilines such as accounts payables and other liabilities approximates the fair values
either because these financial instruments are short-term in nature or the effect of
discounting for those with maturities of more than one year is not material.

6.2 Financial Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for which Fair Value
iz Disclosed

The table below summarnzes the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s financial assets

and financial liabilities which are not measured at fair value in the statements of

financial position but for which fair value is disclosed as of December 31.

P
—Levell  Leweld  Leweld . Tomld

Froancial Assew:
Cassy i eusah sepeviles P a3gaiogs P s P - P 955
Losans and secavables - - LOMSMAES 308 M0 S
Befundabls dspoiis . A ey  TIeMT
E_SASELSE B - EALDISDELIN ELIZETIALNTT
Finarcial Ldabidirees: :
iy narvaliles F ' P . PLIMMG6EET P 1,114,166, 667
Accounty payables end other bibibticn : . 315,650,554 305,600 504
Dhepeomit o lease Cofit=aces . = —OBT45.45% N 74545
= Bt B ELEPASMLTI P LSRN
a7z
—depell . Levedd 0 lewdd Tonl
Frmancal Aowis
Cash and cach squivalents: F %0438 P . B = P w306 6EE
Loass and receivables . . 3 06H, 142 500 L6, 142
Rehordable deposits . . g TaT I6T
OGS Eo. EADGATEGOT E 3159230355
Finsacial Viakia
Bills puyalles B . P - PI1M46A14157 P o1 31&616,157
Aocoume payeiilcs and other habilities : - IT5,681 417 LT
Drepous on lesic contracts : S - - . ) R ) W

e B ELBASSASLY PLMESEAS

For financial asset with fair values included in Level 1, management considers that the
carrying amounts of these instruments approximate their fair values due to their short
duration.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial Habilities included in Level 3,
which are not traded in an active market, are determined based on the expected cash
flows of the underlying asset or liability based on the instrument where the significant
H k| o minia g, Pk ¥ A : . *

B ims et = smsda
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6.3 Fair Valoe Measurement of Non-financial Assets

The table below shows the Levels within the hierarchy of assets classified as

investment properties and other properties acquired measured at fair value as at
December 31.

20l
Lmvestirent prvpeny
Land P = P - P oa0006000 F 60006000
Buciing aned smpeorermenis " : — 0o 00N o) &6 00
- - 100,500,000 100,500,000
Chiser propersies scquired - machineries
and pther capEpTHnS - - ILAS000 37357000
E 2 E - E_LLESLA00 E_LXLASLAM
27
—Leveld = levedd Lewsl 3 Tonl
Ierweserness mresscen
Land P . r . Poa0a3M8006 Pouid 308016
Misldeng end svponemes . z HAGLO00 #4054 000
44 R0 006 e S0 08
Orther propertes stqued — mackenenios
i other equpeent - : —ALITS AR 14LI7RR1E

The fair value of the Company’s land, and buildings and related improvements
classified as Investment Properties and machineries and other equipment classified as
Other properties acquired under Other Assets account are determined on the basis of
the appraisals performed by internal appraisers with appropsate qualifications and
recent expenence in the valuaton of similar properties in the relevant locadons

(see Notes 10 and 11). To some extent, the valuation process was conducted by

the appraiser in discussion with the Company's management with respect to the
determination of the inputs such as the size, age, and conditon of the land and
building and improvements, and the comparable prices in the comesponding property
location. In esumanng the fair value of these properties, management takes into
account the market partcipant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
assets in their highest and best use. Based on management assessment, the best use of
the Company’s non-financial assets indicated above is their current use.

The fair value of these non-financial assets were determined based on the following
approaches;

{a) Fair Value Measuremeni for Land

The fair value of land was derived using market data (direct sales comparison)
approach where the value of the land is based on sales and listings of comparable
properties registered within the vicinity. The market data approach relies on the
comparison of recent sale transactions or offerings of similar properties which
have occurred and/or offered with close proximity to the subject property. The
technique of this approach requires adjustments to sales and listings by
considering the elements of comparison such as real property fghts conveyed,
conditions of sale, market conditions, location, physical condition and amenities.
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(b) Farr Ialve Measwresent for Building and Lnsprovemsents

The fair value of the bulldings under Investment Properties account were
determined using the cost approach that reflects the cost to a market participant
to construct an asset of comparable usage, construction standards, design and
layout, adjusted for obsolescence. The more significant inputs used in the
valuagion include direct and indirect costs of construction such as but not limited
to, labor and contractor's profit, materials and equipment, surveying and permit
costs, electricity and uility costs, architecnural and engineering fees, insurance and
legal fees. These inputs were derived from various suppliers and contractor's
quotes, price catalogues, and construction price indices. Under this approach,
higher estimated costs used in the valuation will result in higher fair value of the
properties.

(e} Fair Vaiwe Measurement of Transportation and Qther Equimvent
The fair value of the transportation and other equipment was determined based
on the appraisal report of independent appraisers. Fair value was determined
based on the replacement cost of an asset with an equally satisfactorly substitute

asset which is normally derived from the current acquisidon cost of & similar
asset, new or used, or of an equivalent productive capacity or service potential,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of December 31:

—Note  __2018 2017
Cash on hand and in banks 171 P B6,336153 P B3,119,782
Short-term placements — 1.M47,792 7.196,906

P_23.683.045 FE_20316.688

Cash in banks generally earn interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short-term placements are made for varying petiods from 30 to 90 days and eam
effective interest ranging from 1.5% to 3.25% in 2018 and 1.3% 1o 1.4% in 2017,

In 2018 and 2017, interest income recognized from cash and cash equivalents
amounted to P0.59 million and PO0.46 million, respectively, and is presented as part of
Interest Income in the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 8).
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8. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
This account is composed of the following:
2018 2017
Receivables from customers:
Lease contracts receivables P 990,556,557 P 972262249
Residual value of leased properties 234,460,376 217,520 364
Deferred leasing income ( 125150,475) { 116,904,300)
Less: Allowance for credit and
impairment losses (—76.807,672) (__ 38,522.613)
023,058,786  _ 1,034,355 700
Loans receivable 693,490,946 724,990,443
Less: Allowance for credit and
impairment Josses (—15.806.275) (___11.830.592)
=R — 617684671 __ 713159851
: Finance receivables:
Check discounts 689,586,930 647,357,145
trng
== lnveice discounting 473,166,994 708,281,076
Uneamed finance income:
= Check discounting ( 22178576) { 5961423
— Invoice discounting (  4,670,006) [  21,738,616)
Less: Allowance for credit and
ienpairment losses (219,227,820) (___76,003,125)
; — 26677522 _1.251,935057
’ Restructured receivables 226,479,938 161,322,995
— Residual value of leased properties
under restructured receivables 22,240,943 23,741,543
— Capitalized interest and other charpes { 20,428,025) | 12,932,336)
p )
- Less: Allowance for eredit and
impairment losses (_121,816,653) (___46,151.118)
— — 106,476,203 __ 135981084
o | Other receivables:
Sales contracts receivable 9,550,010 11,203 467
— Aceounts receivable 3,105,837 7,270,770
= Accrued mnterest recefvable 2,143,004 2,568,740
Others 3,647,199 3,494 535
| Lezs: Allowance for credit and
impairment and losses (——112,792) (____675.893)
== — 17,733258 __ 23861619
- F268L630.440 P3.149.293311
=1
-
-=
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Lease contracts receivable are due in monthly installments with terms ranging from
one to fve years. These are broken down as follows:

2018 — 2017
Lease contracts receivable:
Due within one year P 93,248,031 P B4 885408
Due h-:}-n-ud one year but not
beyond five years _ 897308526 _ 887376751

E_990.556,557 P 972262249
Residual value of leased properties:

Drue within one year P 62308640 P 30241570
Due beyond one year but not
beyond five pears — 172151736 _187.278.794

E 234460376 P 217520364

Gross investment in lease contract receivable P1225016,933 P1,189,782613
Less: Deferred leasing income (_125,150,475) (__116.904,300)

Net investment in lease contracts receivable  PLO99.866,458 PLO72878313

The net investment in lease contracts receivable by contractual mararity dates are
analyzed as follows:

2018 2017
Due within one year P 150,728,643 P 107,414,197
Due beyond one year but not
beyond five years __ 940137815  _ 965464116
. EFL099.866,458 ELOT2AT8.313

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, residual value of leased properties amounting to
P256.70 million and P241.26 million, respectively, pertains to the estimated proceeds
from the disposals of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, which approximates
the amount of guaranty deposit paid by the lessee at the inception of the lease as
presented in Deposit on Lease Contracts in the statements of financial position. At
the end of the lease term, the lessee may apply this deposit as payment for the residual
value of the property.

Lease contracts receivable earn annual interest at rates ranging from 7.00%% to
18.00% and 7.00% to 15.00% in 2018 and 2017, respectively. The Company
recognized interest income from lease contraces receivable amounting to

P75.73 million and P72.60 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is presented
as Leasing Income under Revenues in the statements of comprehensive income.

Loans receivable are secured commereial loans extended by the Company for

Bnancing acquisitions of propertics and equipment. Loans receivable earn annual
interest rates ranging from 7.00% to 16.00% both in 2018 and 2017,
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Loans recetvable by contractual maturity dates is analyzed as follows:

2018 2017
Due within one year P 68450485 P 925355614
Due beyond one year but not
beyond five yeass — 625,040,461 __ 632,434,829

E 623490346 P 724990443

Restructured receivables earn annual interest at rates ranging from 7.25% to 11.00%
and 8.00% to 12.50% in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The breakdown of the Company's interest income follows:

—Dote 2018 2017
Finance receivables P 95414541 P 114397478
Loans receivable 61,107,607 80,995,788
Restructured receivables 8,111,764 7,805,014
Sales contract receivable 1,186,600 1,585,571
Cash in banks 4 587.174 463104

E_166407.686 P_205246955

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, non-performing loans (NPLs) not fully covered
by allowance for eredit losses amounted to P463.73 million and P525.80 million,
respectively.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, secured and unsecured NPLs follow:

2018 2017
Secured - P 302892578 P 291094952
Unsecured —_ 160,836,630 __ 234,709,437

E 463729208 ©F_S525.B04.389

Generally, NPLs refer to loans whose principal and,/or interest is unpaid for thirty
days or more after due date or after they have become past due in accordance with
existing BSP rules and regulations. This shall apply to loans payable in lump sum and
loans payable in quarterly, semi-annual, or annual installments, in which case, the total
outstanding balance thercof shall be considered non-performing.

In the case of recefvables that are payable in monthly installments, the total
outstanding balance thereof shall be considered non-performing when three or mare
instaliments are in arrears. In the case of receivables that are payable in weekly, or
semi-monthly installments, the total outstanding balance thezeof shall be considered
non-performing at the same time that they become past due in accordance with
existing BSP regulations, ie., the entire outstanding balance of the receivable shall be
considered as past due when the total amount of arrearages reaches more than
10.00% of the total receivable balance.
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A loan which is restructured shall be considered non-performing except when as of
restructunng date:

(1) with updated principal and interest payments; and,

(2) fully secured by real estate with loan value of up to 60.00%: of the appraised value
of the real estate security and the insured improvements thereon, and such other
first class collaterals as may be deemed appropriate by the Monetary Board.
Provided, that a restructured loan, with or without capitalized interest, must be
yielding & rate of interest equal 1o or greater than the Company’s average cost of
funds at the date of restructuning, otherwise, it shall be considered non-
performing,

The restoration to a performing loan shall only be effective after a satisfactory track
record of payments of the required amortizations of principal and/or interest has been
established.

For this purpose, a satisfactory track record of payments of principal and/or interest
shall mean three consecutive payments of the required amortizations of principal
and/or interest have been made.

However, in the case of a restructured loan with capitalized interest but not fully
secured by real estate with loan value of up to 60.00% of the appraised value of the
real estate security and the insured improvements thereon or other first class
collaterals, six consecutive payments of the required amortizations of principal and/or
interest must have been made.

A restructured loan which has been restored to a performing loan status shall be
immediately considered non-performing in case of default of any principal or interest
Pﬂj‘mﬂlt.

A reconciliation of the allowance for credit losses for loans and receivables by class
follows:

Leuse
Comrsos Leani Fimasios Restnaciured Oidher
~boez.  Beceivables _Reccivabics _Recchables  Beorivables  BReceivables _ Tomal
At Januasy 1, 2018
Ay previcasly sepeered P OMSELAIY P OiLEME P ToM0a028 P &80 P 6TSERY P OITHIEN B4
Effem of sdopoos of
PFRS § S T L 1 3 N 1§ i I 1 % ] I S 1 11" .|
My repmared 1E3473,532 T 141, 5T b i L T 120,765,300 &5 E 5L G S
Losses (revessals) W2 [ 4TIER | 1.555.153) 69429 T2 22 [6E, 256 33008 T4, 51,084
Reclassifications / eeallocasan 441,544 LI50TA0 [ 2ABAAZY) | 5.505424) NEL O 93EAGTD)
Wate-off (—3L2E0505) (12402400 { S2900388) (10506 458) i (- JGELTT
At December 31, 2018 E_I6800.672 EJABOAZYS BESINAN PLLEASS B TLIM B4R
At Januagy 1, 2007 P 43590794 F HA57031 P 6235585 P 512440 P E75801 P 079344480
Lotses [cevemmale] %] [HN [ 605N 67,060,012 3,068, 3 - 3,546,504
P - { S086263) [ LEIAMT) [ 1345714 B, BET . U H
Wae-ofl { S453) [ LSORIS) (__YRSSSTRM) ( TIAXT - | ST 7O
At Decermber 31, 217 EASREL E LLEMS0) E JADIISS B 4GISLIE P A758W PAVIELW

With the foregoing level of allowance for credit losses, management believes that the
Company has sufficient allowance to cover significant losses that may be incurred
from the non-collection or non-realization of its loans and receivables.
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INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

Investment in a subsidiary pertains to investment in UFEC, 2 wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, with a carrying amount of P5,38 million and P5.64 million at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectvely, which is accounted for at equity method.

BSF has regulated the foreign exchange market which resulted to stringent regulations
affecting the business operations of foreign exchange corporations that led o the
suspension of the UFEC's commercial operations in 2004, UFEC had an initial plan to
terminate its corporate life on December 31, 2006. However, UFEC has decided to put
on hold its dissolution plans. The decision to resume UFEC's operation will depend
lasgely on the policy direction that the regulators would take in the succeeding years.

The movements in the carrying amount of investment in a subsidiary as of
December 31, which is accounted for under the equity method, is shown below,

—ig 2017

Cost P 4025000 P ___ 4025000
Accurnulated share in net profic

Balance at beginning of the year 1,125,724 957,713

Share in net profit 167204 _ 168011

Balance at end of the year — 1292938 1135724
Accumulated share in other

comprehensive income:
Balance at beginning of the year 490,500 116,000
Share in other comprehensive
Income (loss) ( 427,500 374,500

Balance at end of the year —_— 63000 490,500

Carrying amount of investment E__5380928 P___5.0641224
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Company’s investment properties include buildings and several parcels of land,
which are held for investment purposes only and not for sale within 12 months from
the end of the reporting period nor used in the Company’s daily operations. Real estate

tax on investment property for each year was recognized as a related expense in 2018
and 2017, There were no income recognized related to these assets in 2018 and 2017,

The carrying amounts of investment properties presented in the statements of
bnancial posidon as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are shown below.

— 2018 2017
Cost P 95151120 P 105135054
Accumulated depreciaton ( 1,569,402) | 117,847)
Accumulated impairment (— 9.690L008) (_13.646624)

Net carrying amount E_83.890.710 E 21370583
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of investment properties at the beginning
and end of 2018 and 2017 is shown below.

—Note 2018 2017
Balance at beginning of the year P 91370583 P 60035422
Additions 422,484 40,071,516
Reallocation of impairment 1,230,759 -
Depreciation 162 1,451,555) ( 117,847)
Disposals (—7.681561) (__ 8.618.508)
Balance at end of the year P_E3890.710 P_ 91370583

The aggregate appraised values of the investment properties as of December 31, 2018
and 2017 are P100.50 million and P144.80 million, respectively. Other information
about the fair value measurement and disclosures related to the investment properties
are presented in MNote 6.3.

(sain on sale of investment properties amounted to P2.06 million for both 2018 and

2017, and is presented as part of Loss on sale of assets — net acquired under the Other
Income account in the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 16.1).

OTHER ASSETS

This account consists of:

—NNote 2018 2017
Other properties acquired — net 111 F 32,179,036 P 64487045
Property and equipment — net 11.2 12,242,433 13,116,563
Prepaid expenses 6,736,106 8,140,818
Refundable deposits 779,767 779,767
Others — 2201590 ____ 999150

E_54138932 P 87523343
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111 Other Propertics Acquired
The movements of other properties acquired are presented below.

_Note 2018 2017
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P 90,438,847 P 87586742
Additions 16,037,000 64,930,484
Lisposal (_45319.627) (___ 62.078379)
Balance at the end of year 61,156,220 90,438 847
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at the beginning of year 21,245,401 44,182 488
Depreciation during the vear 162 12,451,886 18,112,237
Disposal (—12.799.329) (__41.049.324)
Balance at the end of year 20,897 958 21.245.401
Allowance for Impairment Losses
Balance at the beginning of year 4,706,401 4732438
Reallocation 7,902,256 -
Impairment during the year 16.2 28971 -
Disposal (—4.558402) (____ 26037
Balance at the end of year 8,079,226 4,706,401
Net Book Value P_32179036 P __64.4R7.045

In 2018 and 2017, the Company recognized net gain on foreclosure of other
properties acquired amounting to P2.32 million and P41.43 million, respectively, and
presented under Gain on foreclosure under the Other Income account in the
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 16.1),

In addition, the Company incurred a loss on sale of other properties acquired
amounting to P7.33 million and P14.11 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is
presented s part of Loss on sale of assets acquired — net under the Other Income
account in the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 16.1).

The aggregate appraised values of other properties acquired as of December 31, 2018
and 2017 are P37.36 million and P143.18 million, respectively. Other information
about the fair value measurement and disclosures related to other properties acquired
are presented in Note 6.3,

11.2 Property and Eguipment

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation and amortization of
property and equipment at the beginning and end of 2018 and 2017 are shown below
and in the succeeding page.
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property and equipment at the beginning
and end of 2018 and 2017 is shown below.
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charges for the pear SRS . L I R 3. § B SO " . %! B SUN-1 1L\ 1 -
Balance af Diecmmber 31, 2018
met oof morumudaned depeecunon
A —— E 227 B 26062 B 300 P L2e43
Balance at Jarmsary §, 2007
nit of accumulaied
wd emortzanon P LExMa P LTTETE4 P i p 442015
Additions L1220 L3170 8067, 604 L2504 108
Diarpemal - [ 12500000 ) . { 1250000 Y
ehasgei e th year (R R 7. ) O G - - L — . G L v 1
Badenee w1 Decersier 31, 207
et of neswmuled depreciasion
il \

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the gross carrying amount of the Company's
fully depreciated property and equipment that are still in use is P11.49 million and
P7.20 million, respectively.
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12,  BILLS PAYABLE

This account consists of borrowings from:

Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
Philippine National Bank

Bank of Commerce

Banco De Oro

Security Bank

Robinsons Bank

Eastwest Bank

Bank of the Philippine Islands

2018 2017

P 550,000,000 P 150,000,000
170,000,000 100,000,000
140,000,000 507,032,823
100,000,000 100,000,000

100,000,000 :
30,833,333 182,500,000
23,333,334 137,083,334
- — 140,000,000
EL14.166,667 PL316616157

Bills payable, which are unsecured in nature, have conteactual maturities ranging from

one month to three years,

The Company pays annual interest rates ranging from 5.15% to 7.25% in 2018 and
2.25% to 5.30% in 2017. Interest expense from bills payable amounted to

P71.58 million and P74.4{ million in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is presented

as Interest Expense in the statements of comprehensive income. Interest which
remained unpaid as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to P2.39 million and
P2.17 milhon, respectively, and is presented as Accrued interest on bills payable under
the Accounts Payables and Other Lisbilities account in the statements of finaneial

position (see Note 13),

13. ACCOUNTS PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

This account eonsists of the following as of December 31:

—Notes
Dividends payable 153
Accounts payable
Acerued taxes and licenses
Withholding tax payable

Accrued interest on bills payable 12
Accrued other expenses 17.3

2018

P 200,000,000
105,887,862
5,780,229
3,756,074
2,391,610

—1A35L122

E_325.166.897

— 7

P 200,000,000
71,578,575
4,398,736
1,750,197
2,174 272

— 1908570

E_ZBLB10.350

Accounts payable consists of unreleased checks to suppliers of properties leased by
borrowers and advances from customers received upon availment of a loan or lease
contract which are used for notadal fees, appraisal fees, registration fees and other

related expenses.

Accrued other expenses include management and other professional fees, rent and

other expenses,
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14 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilines analyzed according to when
they are expected to be recovered or settled.

Sk LT
With [o— Wit Bewosd
bt N . OweWens Toial —  OeeYew — CweYesr Tead
Fmuacaal Asscéy
Cuih ind el cuomient P oRLaERal P . P TR Tt P L4 a8 P P S0 508
Lowsa il govervables - geowi LMEFTITNT 1 POTIZAMEE 376000652 1LS94T1I0 1530004 4L 1,455 470 653
Fabandatin depoim = 17541 T8I0 T 28T T
LELASG T 1,907, 50 482 B0 M08 384 1,10 TERT 180T 18D N A STRADT
Algraranle for crads
ared aepusrrreni e (L T Rkl o kR L R TR b1 LCTNE i 193 189 261
—LGLSEAS LI en] L TMAORLISE . LECSSEETAE | JEREBANDAD 4 e w0 Trs
Alan Financial A
|aversmers m w e baidiery - . LYK ] a0 3 5001 224 LT b ]
Lewessnere: propecsas - . B3 550, 110 [LE 1,370,410 B A SEY
Drefersod tan wowri -ree ' 153,078 515 b i LY = IS Pl D]
Oahet mineh - net SR 64— T N — L 2039 v T8 A B TALSTE
— Bleis TG SR AR SINESEE __ MIERST 1L EA AT
B0 B LA E LM B lAlisiiisd B Lol ci B L4tisRing]
Femaocal Liskidner
Bih penibic F i 0ea 06T P . P LidisE 68 P LI00 06080 P 21553538 P LB E1615T
Attearsi payabies ind
ke Haliainhe LT T JA5,E30 55 T5.851,417 000,500 270860 417
SR G bemiet COnREr B4 117 _:.'.:tﬂ:u.'u:. — AN JLSNSIRS  IMLTASTIED  2SA.0T1 043
IE 1IT 280 A 1,887, 542,114 12825707 157,291 %08 1,05 5B A1 5
Mon Frnaocral Lanbolines
Cier balnbien — BT LEA TR £1a1911 E £ L48 FHY
Bl RN A F_UT ey P LTMLETRON PLISi0ade B SIGISLWE B LESLAETAE
15, EQUITY

151 Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Company's capital management objectives are to provide an adequate refum to
the stockholders and to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as 2 going concern

by pocing products and services commensurately with the level of sk,

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as
presented in the statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting periods

under review is summarized as follows:
2018 2017
Total liabilities P1703,079,017 P1,851,697,548
Total equity ~L368.724.455 _ 1601991693
Debt-to-equity rado —l2l  __L16:1.00

The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall

structure, i.c., equity and total liabilines.. The Company manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the
risk charactesistics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capiral
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
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The Company is subject to an externally imposed capital requirement of 2 minimum
of P10.00 million paid-up capital [see Mote 19.1(z)]. The Company's paid-up capital
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to P775.00 million, which amount is in
excess of the externally imposed capital requirenvent (see Note 13.2).

152 Capital Stock

The Company has authonzed capital stock of P1.00 billion divided into 10,000,000
shares with par value of P100 per share. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
Company has issued and outstanding capital stock of 7,750,000 shares or a total of
PF775.00 millicn.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Eumpan]:' has only one stockholder nwmng
100 or more shares of the Company’s capital stock.

15.3 Retained Earnings

Pursuant to the requirements under Circular No. 1011, the Company shall recognize
general loan loss provisions equivalent to one percent of all outstanding loans as of
the end of the reporting period, except for sccounts considered as credit risk-free
under the existing BSP regulations. In cases when the computed allowance for ECL
on those exposures under Stage 1 is less than one percent of the general loan loss
provisions required, the deficiency is recognized through appropdation from the
Company's available Unappropriated retained earnings. The outstanding balance of
appropoaton for general loan loss reserves as of December 31, 2018 include
appropration recognized at January 1, 2018 upon adoption of the ECL model under
PFRS 9 amounting to P23.19 million and the reversal of appropiation made in 2018
amounting to P3.59 million [see Note 2.1(b)].

On December 15, 2017, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends
amountng to P200,000,000 out of unapproprated retained earnings, which is
payable to all stockholders of record as of December 31, 2017 and to be paid on
December 31, 2019 (see Note 13).

On December 15, 2017, the BOD approved the appropriation of P100,000,000 from
the Company’s eamings for stock dividend declaration purposes, and to address the
excess projected unappropoated retained earnings over paid up capitl.

OTHER INCOME AND OPERATING EXPENSES
I6.1 Orther Income

This account consists of:

Motes 2018 2017
Gain on sale of receivables 172 P 11597333 P 42,860,947
Service charges and penaltes 9,736,762 13,398,435
Gain on foreclosure 11.1 2,315,525 41,429 393
Loss on sale of agsets
acquired ~ net 10,111 ( 5,275,823) (  12,046,983)

Miscellaneous 4,947 804 10,436 882
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15.2 Other Operating Expenses
The details of other operating expenses are shown below.

_Notes 2018 2017

Impairment and credit

losses 8111 P 75562924 P 63,856,934
Salaries and

employee benefits 48,717,708 43,790,041
Taxes and licenses 19.2, 23(e) 27,286,229 31,911,675
Depreciation

and amortdzation 10,11.1,11.2 15,953,883 20,806,645
Occupancy 17.3, 211 11,219,613 7,676,894
Litigation and others

legal expenses 5,218,338 12,449,149
Communication

and utilities 3,896,425 264794

t and

professional fees 786,950 1,239,839
Representation and

entertainment 515,541 92 180
Miscellaneous expense _ 3890124 4238841

B 193047335 E_1BETI0IS2

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company, in the nomal course of business, has various transactions with the
Parent Bank, and key management personnel.

The amounts of these transactions and outstanding balances as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are presented below.

18 2017
Amount of  Crutstanding Ameount of Ohetsrandang
_ Relaed Pasty Category ~ _ Moge = Transaction . _Halaoce _Tonection . . Baleocr

Parent Bank
Cash i bank 1.1 P 7,544,057 P Tl,ﬂ!,lﬂ]- P 266777044 P 63,584,904
Sale of receivables 172 730,851,206 727,056,553
Chooapancy ot 173 LB, 497 = 3,404,511
Eey Management Personnel
Compensation 174 12,128,282 - 15,675,671

I7.1 Cash in Bank

The Company's cash in banks include deposit account with the Parent Bank, which
generally earn interest based on the daily bank deposit rates (see Note 7).



HEHHEHEHED RN RERRRERRRR

I7.2 Sale of Receivables

In 2018 and 2017, the Company scld lease contract receivables and other loan
receivables on a withour recourse basis amounting to P730.85 million and

P727.06 mullion, respectively, to the Parent Bank. The recognized gain on such sale
amounted to P11.60 million and P42.86 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is
presented as Gain on sale of receivables under Other Income account in the
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 16.1).

173 Lease Agreement

The Company has existing agreement with the Parent Bank for the lease of its office
space which are renewable every five years at the Company's opdon. Under the terms
of the lease agreement, the Company is required to pay rentals equivalent to a fixed
tate per square meter oocupled.

Rental expenses are shown as part of Occupancy under Other DP-I:I'I.Ei.I]E E.xp:nm it
the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 16.2) and the unpaid rentals as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017 are presented as part of Accrued other expenses under
Accounts Payables and Other Liahilities account in the statements of financial
positon (see Note 13).

17.4 Key Management Personnel Compensation

Salaries and other benefits recerved by key management personnel is broken down as

followrs:
2018 2017
Salaries P 11826082 P 1522832]
Others short-term benefits 302200 447350
E_1210R282 P 15675671
TAXES

The components of tax expense (income) as reported in the statements of
comprehensive income for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017
Current tax expense:
Minimum corporate
income tax (MCIT) P 2210154 P :
Final tax at 20%% 111,322 02,681
Regular corporate
income tax (RCIT) 33,109 849

2,321,476 33,202,530
Deferred tax expense (income) relating
to ongination and reversal of

temporary differences ( 21,655,561) 18,117,363



I I I S S~ I % U

-49.

A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rates to
tax expense reported in profit or loss section of the statements of comprehensive
income follows:

2018 2017
Tax on pretax profic at 30% P 301,055 P 33295836
Adjustment for income subjected to
lower income tax rates { 64,830) | 46,3107
Tax effects of;
MNet operating loss
carry-over (NOLCO) { 17,047,987) -
Loss on sale of assers acquired { 6,189,537) -
Non-deductible interest
and other expenses 2,447 666 1,089 818
Unrecognized MCIT 2,210,154 .
Net deferred tax adjustments ( 940,445) 17,030,952
Non-taxable income { 50.161) | S50.403)

(E_13.33.085) P_S51319.593
The net deferred tax assets relate o the following as of December 31:
Slumm.:nuuf

[ Financial Fosii : I I
— B 2017 2018 2017

Deeferred tax sssets:
Allgrarance for isnpairenen P 15364248 P 62098908 P 10335357 P 1272397
HOLOD 17,047,987 . i 17,047,587) .
Ascumalsted depreciation on
HyCItmGHE Proportes and
ather properties acquived 6, 740, 208 6408575 | 331,233) 6,825 135
Acerued expenses - : - 1,632 569
Dreferred tax hahbilivies:

Lease income differential

between fmance and

opensting bease method  { Z3,68T486) [ 265340T4) (  LETISM) (2682917
Ui gk o

foreciosed asse ( GR4ABE) [ IZ4EREIE) (___ JLIMLIS0) 10072379

Deferred tax assets — Bel E_ISL7R.E18 P 2Piedf0
Dieferred tax expense (indame) (E__2L655.561) E___lE.110.363

The adoption of PFRS 9 has resulted 1o an increase in deferred tax assets amounting
to P101.88 million from the recognition of ECL adjustment on the Company’s loans
and receivables [see Note 2.2(z)(i)].

The Company recognized a deferred tax asset related to the reported NOLCO in
2018, which amounted to P56.83 million, since management believes that it is hkely
that the carry forward tax credit will be realized in the next three years.

The Company is subject to MCIT, which is computed at 2% of gross income, as
defined under tax regulations or RCIT, whichever is higher. In 2018, the Company is
subject to MCIT amounted to P2.21 million as the MCIT is higher than RCIT. In
2017, no MCIT was reported as the RCIT was higher than MCIT.
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COMPLIANCE WITH REPUBLIC ACT NO. 8556, THE FINANCING
COMPANY ACT OF 1998

The Company, which was organized for the purpose of extending credit facilities 1o
consumers by direct lending, 1s governed by the R.A. No. 8556, Presented below and
in the succeeding page are the significant provisions under R.A. No. B356 that are
applicable to the Company.

19.1 Form of Organization

Under Section 2 of R.A. No. 8356, financing companies shall be organized in a form
of stock corporation in accordance with the provisions of the Code, subject to the

following;

.|"d) As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the C-ﬂ'I:I:I.F:lII.F' 1s 2 wholly gwned subsidiary
of a universal bank incorporated and demiciled in the Philippines.

A minimum paid-up capital of P10,000,000 for financing companies located in
Metro Manila and other first class cities and additional capital of P1,000,000 for
branches established in Metro Manila, P500,000 for branches in other classes of
cities and P250,000 for branches established in municipalities. The Company

is in compliance with the minimum paid-up capital requirement as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017 (see Note 15.1).

f#) The corporate name of financing companies shall contain the term “financing
company” or other title or word(s) descriptive of its operations and activities as a
financing company (see Note 1).

19.2 Licensing Fees

Under Section 10 of R.A. No. 8556, an annual fee amountng to P10,000 for offices in
Metro Manila shall be charged and the same shall be paid not later than 45 days
before the anniversary date of the Certificate of Authonty to Operate as a Financing
Company and for as long as its license to opezate is in effect.

The Company's licensing fees for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are
presented as part of Taxes and licenses under the Other Operating Expenses account
in the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 16.2).

193 Loans and Investments

The following are the provisions under Section 11 of the B.A. No. 8556:

fa) The total investment of a financing company in real estate and in shares of stock
1n a real estate development corporation and other real estate based projects shall
not at any ome exceed 25% of its act worth.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company has no investment in real estate.

(&) More than 50% of the funds of 2 financing company shall be used or invested in
financing company :I.-tn:ﬂl:l:s, provided, that in the computation of d:e amount of

Fands saad e dmseas R e i, e o g, miu . gl pui. iy i i i B
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For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company obtained loans
for working capital purposes (see Note 12).

The total credit that & financing company may extend to its directors, officers
and stockholders shall not exceed 15% of its net worth.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company has no outstanding loans
receivables from its directors, officers, stockholders and other related parties.

The total credit that a financing company may extend to any person, company,
corporation ot firm shall not exceed 30% of its net worth.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company did not extend any credit that
exceeded 3% of its net worth.

Unless collected, interest income shall not be recognized on loans receivables
that remain outstanding beyond maturity dates.

The Company is in compliance of this provision as it recognizes interest income
eamed from loan date up to its maturity and the Company ceases to recognize
interest in case when the loan becomes past due.

SELECTED FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The following are some of the financial performance indicators of the Company:

2018 2017
Current ratio 68% 120%;
Debt-to-equity ratic 124% 116%
Return on equity 1% 4%5
Retum on assets 1% 2%
Net interest margin 5% 6%
Loans-to-assets 87% 01%,
CAR 38% 36%

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

2L1 Operating Lease Commitments — Company as Lessce

The Company is a lessee under various operating leases covering certuin warchouse
and office space. These leases have terms of three to five years, with renewal options,
and include annual escalation rate of 3% and 5%, respectively. Rent expense arsing
from these leases amounted to P11.22 million and P7.68 million in 2018 and 2017,
respectively, which are presented as Occupancy under Other Operating Expenses
account in the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 16.2).
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Furure minimum rental payments under these operating lease contracts as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017
Within one year P BI98601 P 6668478
More than one year but
less than five years — 20,722,926 ___15.400,000

E 28221527 P _2206EA4TE
21.2 Legal Claims and Other Commitments

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, there are pending claims and legal sctions against
or in favor of the Company ansing from the nommal course of business. In additicn,
there are other commitments and contingencies that arise in the normal course of the
Company's operations which are not reflected in the accompanying financial
statements, Management is of the opinion that, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
losses, if any, that may arise from all of the above commitments and contingencies will
not have a material effect on the Company's financial statements.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Presented below is the reconciliadon of the Company's liabilities arising from
financing activities, which includes both cash and non-cash changes.

Bills Dividends
Payahile Payable

—FeeMate 12 Bes BMoees 19 snd 15 e Tiatal

Balance a5 of Janaary 1, 2018 PoOIMESIGIST P 2000000000 P 1516616157

Repayment of bills paysble [ 20627404590) - f 2,062,745 490
Procoeds fosm aveilmenss of

bills payahle — LBGOO (4] i L6000 000

Balance a5 of December 31, 2018 E_LU4166667 E____00000000 2B L¥4.066.667

Bulanice as of fanuary 1, 2007 P 1574587062 P . P 1,674 587 062

Repayment of bills payable { 2,83,593,420) : ¢ 2 183,593,420
Proceeds fooan avadaments of

‘balls paryabds 1,835 622 815 - 1,825 623 515

Divadends dedased - SO D00 OO S 1,1 1,1, M.

Balance as of Diecember 31, 2007 E_LNAAIE15T B 2000000 P 1818818157
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF
INTERNAL REVENUE

Presented below and in the succeeding page is the supplementary information which
1s required by the BIR Revenue Regulation (RR) No. 15-2010 to disclosed as part of
the notes to financial statements. This supplementary information is not a required
disclosure under PFRS.

The information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the mxable
year required under RR No. 15-2010 are presented below and in the succeeding page.

{a} Gross Receipits Tax (GRT)

(&)

(i)

(d)

In liew of the vale-added tax, the Company is subject to the GRT imposed on all
banks and non-bank financial intermediaries performing quasi-banking functions
pursuant to Section 121 of the Tax Code, as amended. Total GRT reported as a
component of the Taxes and licenses under Other Operating Expenses account
[see Note 23(c)] is broken down as follows:

— Taxable Transactions Tax Base GRT

Royalties, rentals of property, (real
or personal), profits from exchange

and all other gross income — 7% P 784,005 P 54,880
Interest, commissions and discounts

from lending actvities with maturity

petiod of five years or less — 5% 255,744 195 12,787 210

Interest, commissions and discounts
from lending activities with matusity

petiod of more than 5 years — 1% 1,044,380 10,444
All other items treated as

gross income — 5% 19,001,373 — 950,069

E_ 216573953 EB__13.802.603
Exder T

The Company did not pay excise tax in 2018 since it did not have any
transactions which are subject to excise tax.

Taxces on Iportation

The Company did not pay any customs’ duties and tariff fees to the Bureaw of
Customs since it did not have any importations during the year.

Documentary Stamp Tax (DST)

For the year ended December 31, 2018, DST paid and accrued amounting to
PB.03 million refers to otginal issue of debt instruments and shares of stocks,
The amount of DST paid and recognized duning the year is recorded as part of
Taxes and licenses under Other Operating Expenses account in 2018 smtement
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fe) Taxer and Licemses

The details of Taxes and licenses under Other Operating Expenses account in
2018 are as follows:

—DMNotes
GRT 23(a) P 13802603
Documentary stamps 23(d) 8,027,392
Fringe benefit mx 4,703,906
Others 752328
16.2 P__27.286.229

(0 Withbolding Tavces

The details of total withholding taxes for the year ended December 31, 2018 are
shown below:

Expanded P 11,387,136
Other percentage tax 1,550,282
Value-added tax — 1275135

E__14.212.553

The Company did not have any transaction subject to final and compensation
withholding taxes for the year ended December 31, 2018,

(g} Deficiency Tax Assesoment and Tax Cases
As of December 31, 2018, the Company does not have any final deficiency tax

assessments from the BIR or tax cases outstanding or pending in courts or
bodies outside of the BIR in any of the open taxable years.



